
 
 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING 
 

DATE: June 16, 2021 

TIME:  6:30 pm 

LOCATION: 2289 Main Street, Genoa, Nevada 89411 

Genoa Town Office Meeting Room 

The meeting will be preceded by a tour of Carson Valley Conservation District projects.  The Board will meet at 4pm in 
the parking lot of Mormon Station State Park in downtown Genoa, 2295 Main St, Genoa, NV 89411.  We will have 
dinner at 5:30 pm and our Board meeting at 6:30pm in the Genoa Town Office meeting room.  A quorum of the CWSD 
Directors may be present at the events preceding the board meeting, but no action will be taken. 

CWSD encourages Board Members attendance at field trips to be in-person meetings, but virtual attendance is 
available via Zoom.  If you prefer to phone in, call (669)900 9128.  Meeting ID: 878 3729 5512; Passcode: 096516 

AGENDA 
 

Please Note: The Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) Board may: 1) take agenda items out of order; 2) combine two 
or more items for consideration; and/or 3) remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion related to an item at any time. 
All votes will be conducted by CWSD Board of Directors.  Reasonable efforts will be made to assist and accommodate 
individuals with disabilities who wish to join the meeting. Please contact Catrina Schambra at (775)887-7450 
(catrina@cwsd.org), at least two business days in advance so that arrangements can be made. 

 

1. Call to Order the CWSD Board of Directors/Carson River Watershed Committee 

2. Roll Call 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. For Discussion Only:  Public Comment - Action may not be taken on any matter brought up under 
public comment until scheduled on an agenda for action at a later meeting. 

5. For Possible Action:  Approval of Agenda 

6. For Possible Action:  Approval of the Board Meeting Minutes of May 19, 2021 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Please Note:  All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and may be acted upon by the Board of Directors with one 
action and without an extensive hearing.  Any member of the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, 
discussed, and acted upon separately during this meeting. 

7. For Possible Action:  Approval of Treasurer’s Report for May 2021 

8. For Possible Action:  Approval of Payment of Bills for May 2021 

9. For Possible Action:  Approval of the Cost-of-Living Adjustment Policy  

10. For Possible Action:  Approval of State Contract #2021-1 Carson Valley Conservation District – 
Carson River Bioengineering Project in an amount not to exceed $75,000 

11. For Possible Action:  Approval of State Contract #2021-2 Carson Valley Conservation District – 
West Fork Bank Stabilization Project in an amount not to exceed $100,000 

12. For Possible Action:  Approval of State Contract #2021-3 Dayton Valley Conservation District – 
River Projects Inventory Project in an amount not to exceed $100,000 

CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AND CARSON RIVER WATERSHED COMMITTEE 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87837295512?pwd=U005aXhoenpDbERpQjJCSWY1cXRGZz09
mailto:catrina@cwsd.org


Carson Water Subconservancy District Board of Directors & Carson River Watershed Committee 
6/16/2021 Meeting Agenda 

2 

13. For Possible Action:  Approval of State Contract #2021-4 Lahontan Conservation District - Lower 
Carson River Project in an amount not to exceed $25,000 

14. For Possible Action:  Approval of Non-Profit Agreement #2021-5 Sierra NV Journeys – Family 
Watershed Nights in amount to exceed $3,280 

15. For Possible Action:  Approval of Non-Profit Agreement #2021-6 River Wranglers – Carson River 
Workdays in an amount not to exceed $36,000 

16. For Possible Action:  Approval of Non-Profit Agreement #2021-7 Alpine Watershed Group – 
Carson River Upper Watershed Programs in an amount not to exceed $25,000 

17. For Possible Action:  Approval of Interlocal Contract #2021-8 Churchill County – Lahontan Valley 
Water Level Measurement Program in the amount not to exceed $44,000 over 3 years 

18. For Possible Action:  Approval of Interlocal Contract #2021-9 Truckee-Carson Irrigation District – 
Carson River Diversion Dam Repairs Project in an amount not to exceed $50,000 

**END OF CONSENT AGENDA** 

19. For Discussion Only:  Presentation on the USACE Alluvial Fan study in Douglas County    

20. For Discussion Only:  Presentation on the Douglas County Stormwater Program by Courtney 
Walker, Douglas County Stormwater Manager 

21. For Discussion Only:  Wrap up on the 2021 Legislative Session 

22. For Possible Action:  Discussion to send support letter regarding the Douglas County Lands Bill 

23. For Possible Action:  Approve General Manager Review 

24. For Discussion Only:  Update on 2021 Water Year  

25. For Discussion Only:  Staff Reports 

   - General Manager 

    - Legal 

    - Correspondence 

26. For Discussion Only:  Directors Reports 

27. For Discussion Only:  Update on activities in Alpine County 

28. For Discussion Only:  Update on activities in Storey County 

29. For Discussion Only:  Public Comment - Action may not be taken on any matter brought up under 
public comment until scheduled on an agenda for action at a later meeting. 

30. For Possible Action:  Adjournment 

 

 

Supporting material for this meeting may be requested from Catrina Schambra at 775-887-7450 
(catrina@cwsd.org) and is available on the CWSD website at www.cwsd.org. 

 

http://www.cwsd.org/
http://www.cwsd.org/


AGENDA ITEM #6 

 

MINUTES OF LAST 

BOARD MEETING 



 

1 5-19-2021 

 

 

CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND 

CARSON RIVER WATERSHED COMMITTEE MEETING 

May 19, 2021 

Draft Minutes 

The CWSD May 19, 2021, Board of Directors meeting was held in person and via 
Zoom Video/Telephone conference due to Governor Sisolak’s lifting Covid-19 
restrictions. 

Chairman Giomi called the meeting of the Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) to 
order at 6:30pm.  Roll call of the CWSD Board was taken and a quorum was determined to be 
present. 
 

CWSD Directors present:   

Stacey Giomi, Director 

John Engels, Director (via Zoom) 

Jack Jacobs, Director 

David Nelson, Director (via Zoom) 

Pete Olsen, Director (via Zoom) 

Lisa Schuette, Director 

Fred Stodieck, Director 

Mike Workman, Director 

Absent:  Mark Gardner, Ken Gray, and Ernie Schank. 

Roll call of the Carson River Watershed Committee included CWSD Directors and Committee 

Members present (via Zoom) - Kathy Canfield, David Griffith, and January Riddle. 

CWSD Staff & Guests present: 

Nick Charles, Lumos & Associates, Inc. 

Shane Fryer, Watershed Program Specialist 

Brenda Hunt, Watershed Program Manager 

Edwin James, General Manager 

Patrick King, CWSD Attorney 

Debbie Neddenriep, Water Resource Specialist II 

Catrina Schambra, Administrative Assistant/Secretary to the Board 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Committee Director Giomi. 

Item #4 – Discussion Only:  Public Comment 

Director Engels commented he attended a Nevada Development Authority (NDA) meeting.  
Every meeting he brings up the topic of water. He feels there is a lot of talk about water, but not 
where we are going to get more water.  He has concerns with all the new development, 
especially up in Fernley. 

Director Nelson reported that Director Gardner is at an installation for the Elks Club and that is 
why he is not here today. 

Item #5 – For Possible Action:  Approval of Agenda 

Mr. James asked to combine Items 16 & 18 together for discussion.  Chairman Giomi said 

Catrina Schambra
Draft



 

2 5-19-2021 

 

 

we will allow that as long as there are no objections.  They were no objections. 

No action taken. 

Item #6 – For Possible Action:  Approval of the Board Meeting Minutes of April 15, 2021 

Committee Member Griffith made a motion to approve the Board Meeting Minutes 

of April 15, 2021, as presented.  The motion was seconded by Director Jacobs and 

unanimously approved by the Board. 

Committee Member Griffith asked that we make a motion on approving the 

Agenda. Chairman Giomi agreed.  Committee Member Griffith mad a motion to 

approve the agenda, with the change requested.  Director Stodieck seconded the 

motion, and it was unanimously approved by the Board. 

**CONSENT AGENDA** 

Item #7 - For Possible Action:  Approval of Treasurer’s Report for April 2021 

Item #8 - For Possible Action:  Approval of Payment of Bills for April 2021 

Item # 9 - For Possible Action:  Approval of Revised Lost Lake Agreement with 

Carson City 

Director Jacobs made a motion to approve Consent Agenda as presented.  The 

motion was seconded by Director Stodieck and unanimously approved by the 

Board. 

**END OF CONSENT AGENDA** 

 

Item # 10 - For Possible Action:  Public Hearing of CWSD FY 2021-22 Tentative 

Budget 

Chairman Giomi opened the Public Hearing of the CWSD FY 2021-22 Tentative Budget.  

There being no comments, he closed the Public Hearing.  

No action was taken. 

Item # 11 - For Possible Action:  Presentation by Lumos on the USBR Water 

Marketing Study 

In introducing Nick Charles from Lumos & Associates  to give his  presentation of the 
USBR Water Marketing Study, Chairman Giomi commended him on his comprehensive 
report.  He said it is so good that it should be published and put in our libraries and 
schools for its information on the Carson River!  A very well-done document. 

Mr. Charles gave his presentation of the water study that included charts of river flows 
measured from 1940 – 2020 at four USGS stations:  (1) West Fork at Woodfords, (2) East 
Fork near Gardnerville, (3) Carson River near Carson City, and (4) Carson River near Fort 
Churchill.  He reported the flows are changing and are more variable; the highs are 
higher, and the lows are lower.  The spring runoffs are earlier in the year and there is no 
storage on the Carson River.  These are troubling trends for watershed users – irrigation 
and domestic wells, municipalities, and others.  Climatic trends in Carson City show that 
temperatures are increasing, and precipitation is decreasing.  There are water 
management challenges that need to be addressed.  He discussed the difference 
between perennial yield and system yield, and municipal water usage estimates for 2020 
to 2040:  It is 26,650 AF per year in 2020, increasing to an estimated 28,007 AF per year 

Catrina Schambra
Draft



 

3 5-19-2021 

 

 

by 2040 based on growth estimates.  Management of the watershed and water 
marketing strategies are critical for the future demands.  Mr. Charles discussed the 
options available now and for the future. 

Committee Member Griffith asked how Lake Tahoe affects the system yield.  There was 
discussion of the Alpine Decree rotation term, meaning junior water rights can be put in 
the que if water available.  This allows flexibility by the Water Master and allows for 
water to be fully utilized. 

Director Engels commented Climatologists recognize climate change, but development 
seems to be in a frenzy right now and this does not seem to be taken in account in the 
planning.  He says he is worries about water limitations.  This seems to not be talked 
about and he wants answers.  He is very concerned about increases in development and 
that there is not enough water for the increase in population to the area. 

Director Jacobs had a question regarding water rights and benefits of these concepts 
presented. 

No action taken. 

Item # 12 - For Discussion Only:  Presentation on River Wranglers Activities 

Darcy Phillips gave a presentation of River Wranglers activities during the past year.  
Covid-19 restrictions required a change in the curriculum and required them to move to a 
virtual platform.  All in all, it went well!  She gave a video presentation of the backpacks 
with supplies that were delivered to the students to use in tandem with the online 
curriculum and projects.  RW focus was on 4-5 graders.  During a normal school year RW 
outreach connects with 6,000 students, with 2,500 be repeat participants.  During the 
Covid-10 year the outreach was limited to only 500-600 students.  She is looking forward 
to field trips starting again soon. 

No action taken. 

Item # 13 - For Discussion Only:  Update on Carson River Float Trip 

Shane Fryer gave a report in the April 29 Float Trip:  The river flow was very low!  Carson 
City was generous to let us borrow sit on kayaks for the day.  There was a total 27 people 
that participated.  It was a workshop type float to inform and introduce community 
leaders to the river.  In attendance were reps from NDEP, the Washoe Tribe, Trails groups 
and a CWSD Board member!  The river was at only 127 CFS, but it worked. The route 
flowed was part of the proposed expanded Aquatic Trail.  It took 5 hours to float 5 miles, 
so they did not go as far as was planned.  The group had lunch at the river and a great 
time was had by all.  Mr. Fryer showed pictures from a beautiful day on the river! 

No action taken. 

Item # 14 - For Discussion Only:  Update on launch of “Water Connects Us All” 

program 

Brenda Hunt gave a brief history on the project for the new Board members.  This 
campaign has been years in the making for education and outreach to the community.  It 
has been a great success so far!  Here are some of the stats reported: 

Facebook: 8,516 views (7,991 of which played the full video!) 
 10,500 total engagements, in the 25-54 age group target. 

Instagram:  562 views (which is 2 times the number of CWSD followers) 

Instagram reach is up, and Facebook reported increase of 116% of outreach.  Ms. Hunt 

Catrina Schambra
Draft



 

4 5-19-2021 

 

 

shared a Channel 2 TV video clip of her interview to the Board members.  She explained 
the upcoming Watershed Moments that will be the next phase of the campaign. 

No action taken. 

Item # 15 - For Possible Action:  Approval of the General Fund, 

Acquisition/Construction Fund, and Floodplain Management Fund FY 2021-22 Final 

Budgets 

Mr. James gave an overview the Final Budgets as approved by Finance Committee for 
recommendation to the Board for approval.  The final Budget includes a recommended 
change by the Finance Committee to increase the River Wrangler Non-Profit Agreement 
by $10,000 (to $36,000) and to transfer an additional $30,000 to Acquisition Construction 
Fund. 

Director Jacobs made a motion to approve the General Fund, 

Acquisition/Construction Fund, and Floodplain Management Fund FY 2021-22 

Final Budgets as presented.  The motion was seconded by Director Schuette and 

unanimously approved by the Board. 

Item # 16 - For Possible Action:  Work with Water Purveyors and Communities on 

Water Awareness and Conservation Program, AND 

Item # 18 - For Discussion Only:  Update on 2021 Water Year  (Combined) 

Mr. James began with an update on the water year:  He believes the peak was May 7.  
We might break the record of the driest year if there is no more precipitation.  We are 
very close to an all-time record for dry/lack of precipitation.  We are at 20% of average in 
the Carson River and it goes down to 13% further downstream.  A statistic from 
Sacramento puts us at the 2nd driest year on record for past 100 years! 

Most municipalities do not expect to have shortages this year, but we live in the desert.  
Water conservation is a precious commodity in our watershed.  One watershed must 
work as one.  He is meeting with county and water purveyors. 

Director Giomi commented that it is so important that we get this message out to the 
community. 

No action taken. 

Item # 17 - For Possible Action:  Update on the 2021 Legislation Session  

Mr. James reported that the Storey County Bill has passed the Senate, going to Assembly 
now and then on to the Governor.  It looks good! 

No action was taken. 

Item #22 – For Discussion Only:  Staff Reports –  

Mr. James reported the following: 

• The General Manager Annual Review forms will be sent in the next few days to all Board 
members, please fill them out and return asap.  Then they will be reviewed by 
Administrative Committee and reported back to the Board at the June meeting. 

• The American Rivers MOU regarding Beavers Dams is in progress and will be presented at 
the June Board meeting. 

• The Single Audit FEMA requirements have been met.  CWSD has set up new internal 
policies for Federal grants and FEMA has resolved the issue. 

Catrina Schambra
Draft



 

5 5-19-2021 

 

 

• The June Board meeting will be the start of our field trips through the summer: 

June – Genoa, CVCD Tour, Dinner, and meeting at Genoa Town Hall 
July – Lyon County, DVCD Tour, Minor Ranch BBQ, and meeting at Utilities Office 
August – Alpine County, Project Tour, BBQ, and meeting at Turtle Rock Park 
September – Marlette Water System Tour  
 
Field trips are very informative for the Board, and he hopes everyone will attend! 

• He has resumed meeting with Water Purveyors in the watershed as Covid-19 restrictions 
have lifted. 

Legal – Mr. King said it was good to see Fred Stodieck!  He also mentioned to John Engels to feel 
free to call him anytime to discuss his concerns. 

Correspondence –   None 

No action was taken. 

Item #23 – For Discussion Only:  Directors Reports –  

• Director Schuette gave a huge thank you to Shane and Ed including her on the Float Trip.  
It was an incredible day and they even saw a Bald Eagle! 

No action was taken. 

Item #24– For Discussion Only:  Update on activities in Alpine County –  

• Committee Member Riddle reported that she took part in Markleeville Clean Up Day, 
which picked up at least 300 cigarette butts and a lot of trash.  She is happy to help in any 
way she can. 

• Committee Member Griffith stated regarding water concerns, it would probably be 
possible to increase river flows by 5-6% by removing excess biomass in forests. This is 
being done in other places and its working.   

No action was taken. 

Item #25– For Discussion Only:  Update on activities in Storey County – None 

No action was taken. 

Item #26 – For Discussion Only:  Public Comment –   

• Shane Fryer mentioned that he had requests to conduct East Fork float trips in 2022.  
Please let him know if you would be interested and he will keep all informed of future 
float plans. 

There being no further business to come before the Board, Director Gray adjourned the meeting at 

8:44 pm. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Catrina Schambra 
Secretary to the Board 

Catrina Schambra
Draft



AGENDA ITEM #7 

 

TREASURER’S REPORT 































AGENDA ITEM #8 

 

PAYMENT OF BILLS 











AGENDA ITEM #9 



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board Members 
 
FROM: Edwin James  
 
DATE: June 16, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item #9 – For Possible Action:  COLA Policy 

 
DISCUSSION:  Attached is a draft COLA calculation procedure policy for CWSD 
employees.  Staff met with the Administrative Committee on June 9, 2021, for input and 
direction on this proposed policy.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve COLA Policy as presented. 
 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM #10



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board Members 
 
FROM: Edwin James  
 
DATE: June 16, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item #10 – For Possible Action:  Approval of Contract #2021-1 

Carson Valley Conservation District – Carson River Bioengineering Project in 
an amount not to exceed $75,000 

 
 
DISCUSSION:  Attached is Contract #2021-1 with Carson Valley Conservation District.  
Funding for this project was approved in the 2021-22 budget.  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the agreement as submitted.  
 
 



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-1 
 

Page 1 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-1:   
CVCD – Carson River Bioengineering 

 

Agreement 
 

Addressing Funding from Carson Water Subconservancy District to the  
CARSON VALLEY CONSERVATION DISTRICT for  

Carson River Bioengineering Project 
 
 THIS CONTRACT dated this 16th day of June 2021, is entered into by and between CARSON VALLEY 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada (hereinafter "DISTRICT") and the 
CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada (hereinafter 
"CWSD").  

 

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, DISTRICT is a governmental subdivision of the State of Nevada a public body corporate and 
politic, organized in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 548 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS); and 

 WHEREAS, CWSD is a water subconservancy district created and organized under the provisions of 
Chapter 541 of NRS; and 

 WHEREAS, this Contract is entered into under the provisions of NRS 277.180 and must be ratified by 
appropriate official action of the governing body of each party as a condition precedent to its entry into force; and  

 WHEREAS, CWSD and DISTRICT each possess common objectives and responsibilities regarding the 
Carson River Bioengineering Project, and  

 WHEREAS, CWSD has agreed to set aside $75,000 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021, and to 
grant DISTRICT said amount to assist with the Carson River Bioengineering Project. 

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants herein contained, it is 
mutually agreed by and between the parties as follows:  

1. CONTRACT TERM: 

a. CWSD hereby grants to DISTRICT $75,000 to assist with Carson River Bioengineering Project 
which is further identified and described in Exhibit "A.” 

b. DISTRICT will submit requests for funding periodically.  The request for funding shall be 
accompanied by a description of what the funds will be used for and shall reference this Contract.  

c. CWSD commits to pay the approved amount of the request to DISTRICT within four (4) weeks of 
said request. 

d. DISTRICT will submit Project Summary Reports (see Exhibit “B”), including before and after 
project pictures, project goals, etc., prior to final invoice payment or ten percent of grant funding 
will be withheld until reports are submitted.  

e. CWSD shall have no responsibility for costs exceeding $75,000.  

f. This Contract shall terminate June 30, 2022, at which time DISTRICT shall have one (1) month 
thereafter to submit its final invoice for payment related to work performed under this Contract. 

g. If circumstances arise that require a time extension to complete the project, the CWSD Board 



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-1 
 

Page 2 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-1:   
CVCD – Carson River Bioengineering 

grants the General Manager authority to do so in a written notice to the DISTRICT. 

h. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, any obligation of CWSD hereunder is 
conditioned upon CWSD's funding resources.  If for whatever reason the CWSD's funding 
resources are reduced or eliminated, CWSD reserves the right to terminate this Agreement 
immediately in writing.  CWSD will reimburse DISTRICT for all costs that occurred under this 
Agreement up to the date the Agreement is terminated. 

2. LIMITED LIABILITY AND INDEMIFICATION: 

a. The parties will not waive but rather intend to assert available NRS chapter 41 liability limitations 
in all cases. Contract liability of both parties shall not be subject to punitive damages. To the 
extent applicable, actual contract damages for any breach shall be limited by NRS 353.260 and 
NRS 354.626. 

b. Consistent with paragraph 2.a of this Contract, each party shall indemnify, hold harmless and 
defend (not excluding the others right to participate) the other party from and against all liability, 
claims, actions, damages, losses, and expenses, including, but not limited to, reasonable 
attorneys’ fees and costs, arising out of any alleged negligent or willful acts or omissions of the 
indemnifying party, its officers, employees, and agents. Such obligation shall not be construed to 
negate, abridge, or otherwise reduce any other right or obligation of indemnity which would 
otherwise exist as to any party or person described in this paragraph. 

c. The indemnification obligation under this paragraph is conditioned upon the receipt of written 
notice of claim by the indemnified party to the indemnifying party within thirty (30) days. The hold 
harmless and indemnification provision shall not apply to attorneys’ fees and costs for the 
indemnified party’s chosen right to participate with legal counsel. 

d. If the DISTRICT hires a contractor to perform any portion of this project, the contractor shall add 
CWSD as an additional insured.  The contractor must carry the Liability Insurance requirements 
are described in Exhibit “C.” 

e. Prior to commencing the activities that constitute the Project, DISTRICT shall deliver to CWSD a 
certificate issued by its insurance carrier naming CWSD as an additional insured and stating that 
the policy will not be modified or cancelled without 30 days’ notice to CWSD.  

3. NOTICE:  For invoicing and notice purposes, the address of each party is as follows: 

  DISTRICT    CWSD 
  Attn:  Richard Wilkinson   Attn.: Edwin James 
  Grant Manager    General Manager 
  1702 County Rd., Ste. A   777 E. William St., #110 
  Minden, NV  89423   Carson City, NV 89706 
  (775) 782-3661 x3830   (775) 887-7456 
 

4. MISCELLANEOUS: 

a. This Contract shall be by and between the parties hereto and shall not be assignable or 
transferable. 

b. Any dispute regarding this Contract shall be decided according to the laws of the State of 
Nevada. The Parties consent to the jurisdiction of, and agree that disputes will be resolved by, the 
courts of the First Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada in Carson City. If any part of this 
Contract is declared to be unlawful, any remaining obligations shall be deemed terminated. 



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-1 
 

Page 3 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-1:   
CVCD – Carson River Bioengineering 

c. This Contract may only be amended by consent of both parties. Any amendments must be written 
and executed with the same formality as this Contract. 

d. This Contract constitutes the entire understanding between the parties and there are no 
representations, conditions, warranties, or collateral agreements (expressed or implied), statutory 
or otherwise, with respect to the subject of this Contract. 

e. The Parties are associated with each other only for the purposes and to the extent set forth in this 
contract. Each Party is a public agency separate and distinct from the other Party. Nothing 
contained in this contract may be deemed or construed to create a partnership or joint venture, to 
create relationships of an employer-employee or principal- agent, to convey ownership of any 
asset, or to otherwise create any liability for one Party whatsoever with respect to the 
indebtedness, liabilities, and obligations of the other Party. 

f. The Parties agree to keep and maintain, under general accepted accounting principles, full, true, 
and complete records, agreements, books, and documents pertaining to this contract, and at the 
request of the other Party agree to present, at any reasonable time, such records, agreements, 
books, and documents for inspection, examination, review, audit, and copying at any office where 
such records, agreements, books, and documents are maintained. 

g. Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents, including this contract, may be open to 
public inspection and copying. The Parties will have the duty to disclose unless particular 
information or documents are made confidential by law or a common law balancing of interest. To 
the extent that information or documents are made confidential, the Parties shall keep such 
information or documents confidential. 

h. This contract does not contemplate any transfer of property or ownership interest between the 
Parties and the Parties will each maintain ownership of their own facilities. 

i. Except as otherwise provided for by law or this contract, the rights and remedies of the Parties 
shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or 
equity. 

j. Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular breach of this contract or its 
material or nonmaterial terms by either Party shall not operate as a waiver by such Party of any of 
its rights or remedies as to any other breach. 

k. Neither Party shall be deemed to be in violation of this contract if it is prevented from performing 
any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public transportation, civil or military 
authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires, explosions, or acts of God, including, without 
limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or storms. In such an event the intervening cause must not 
be through the fault of the Party asserting such an excuse, and the excused Party is obligated to 
promptly perform in accordance with the terms of the contract after the intervening cause ceases. 

l. Each provision of this Agreement shall be considered severable and if for any reason any provision 
or provisions herein are determined to be invalid, unenforceable, or illegal under any existing or 
future law, such invalidity, unenforceability, or illegality shall not impair the operation of or affect 
those portions of this Agreement that are valid, enforceable, and legal. 
 

5. PROPER AUTHORITY: 

a. This Contract becomes effective when ratified by appropriate official action of the governing body 
of each party; however, the DISTRICT can submit expenses that have been incurred from July 1, 
2021, forward. 

b. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this Contract on behalf of 
each party has full power and authority to enter into this Contract and that the parties are 



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-1 
 

Page 4 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-1:   
CVCD – Carson River Bioengineering 

authorized by law to engage in cooperative action set forth herein. 

c. This Contract shall be entered into with duplicate originals, realizing that each entity, by 
necessity, must approve and execute the subject document at different dates, times, and places. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Contract on the day and year first written above.   

 

DATED: ________________________  DATED: ________________________ 
 
 
CARSON VALLEY    CARSON WATER 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT   SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
James Settelmeyer, Chairman  Robert S. Giomi, Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST:    ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________________  _______________________________ 
J.B. Lekumberry, Secretary   Catrina Schambra, Secretary to the Board  

 
  



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-1 
 

Page 5 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-1:   
CVCD – Carson River Bioengineering 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Project Description 
 

The Carson Valley Conservation District (District) will try to stabilize vertical cutbanks as needed throughout the 
Carson Valley. These cutbanks have migrated faster than usual because of the two flooding incidents that were 
experienced in 2017. The goal would be to use bioengineering techniques to stabilize the soil, improve water 
quality and re-establish desirable vegetation. The District would like to continue our work on channel maintenance 
and woody debris removal throughout the Carson River. The district would like to partner with CWSD, CTWCD, 
NDWR and Douglas County to complete this river work by the summer of 2022.  The project will help minimize 
erosion, improve water quality, re-establish desirable vegetation improve river function within the project reach. 
The project will help trap sediment and provide for natural recruitment of vegetation along the riverbank. The 
willow plantings will help hold the soil and provide a head start on the re-establishment of vegetation of the 
riverbank. The removal of large woody debris will allow for improved conveyance of river flows and reduce the 
negative impacts to infrastructure downstream. 

 
  



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-1 
 

Page 6 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-1:   
CVCD – Carson River Bioengineering 

Exhibit B 

 

Project Summary Form  

Project name  

Type of Project   

Map ID# Per Stewardship Plan Maps if previously mapped 

Date Started  

Date Completed    

Location Details/Address  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

HUC  

Contact Person   

Primary Objective (What will the project achieve? Was the objective achieved?) 

Area restored/stabilized 
Add linear feet of project/acreage/an applicable measurable unit/material used (rock, 
plants, etc.) 

Estimated Load Reduction Only if applicable 

Total Project Cost $ 

Project Partners List all partners 

 

 

 

Project Photos:  

 

Before construction:     After construction: 

 
Title: Example Photos (replace with specific project)  

Tracking Updates and Milestones  

Date Activity  

Add data and expand table/insert rows 
as required 

Add data and expand table/insert rows as required 

  



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-1 
 

Page 7 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-1:   
CVCD – Carson River Bioengineering 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

Liability Insurance 
 

a. General Liability Insurance:  Prior to commencement and for the duration of activities that 
constitute the Project that is the subject of this Contract, Contractor shall maintain commercial 
general liability (CGL) as follows:  

i. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - General Aggregate. 

ii. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - Products & Completed Operations Aggregate. 

iii. One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) - Each Occurrence. 

iv. CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 04 13 (or a substitute 
form providing equivalent coverage) and shall cover liability arising from premises, 
operations, products-completed operations, personal and advertising injury, and liability 
assumed under an insured contract [(including the tort liability of another assumed in a 
business contract)]. 

v. CWSD, its officers, employees and immune contractors shall be included as an insured 
under the CGL, using ISO additional insured endorsement CG 20 10 or CG 20 26, or a 
substitute providing equivalent coverage, including coverage under the commercial 
umbrella, if any. 

vi. This insurance shall apply as primary insurance with respect to any other insurance or 
self-insurance programs afforded to CWSD There shall be no endorsement or 
modification of the CGL to make it excess over other available insurance; alternatively, if 
the CGL states that it is excess or pro rata, the policy shall be endorsed to be primary 
with respect to the additional insured. 

vii. There shall be no endorsement or modification of the CGL limiting the scope of coverage 
for liability assumed under a contract. 

viii. Contractor waives all rights against CWSD and its agents, officers, directors, and 
employees for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the 
commercial general liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance maintained 
pursuant to this Contract. Insurer shall endorse CGL policy as required to waive 
subrogation against CWSD with respect to any loss paid under the policy.  

ix. Prior to commencing the activities that constitute the Project, DISTRICT shall deliver to 
CWSD a certificate issued by its insurance carrier naming CWSD as an additional 
insured and stating that the policy will not be modified or cancelled without 30 days’ 
notice to CWSD. 

b. Business Automobile Liability Insurance:   

i. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability and, if necessary, commercial umbrella 
liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each accident for bodily injury 
and property damage. 



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-1 
 

Page 8 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-1:   
CVCD – Carson River Bioengineering 

ii.  Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of owned, hired, and non-owned autos (as 
applicable).  Coverage as required above shall be written on ISO form CA 00 01, CA 00 
05, CA 00 25, or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage. 

iii.  Contractor waives all rights against CWSD and its agents, officers, directors, and 
employees for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the 
automobile liability or other liability insurance obtained by Contractor pursuant this 
Contract.  

iv.  Prior to commencing the activities that constitute the Project, DISTRICT shall deliver to 
CWSD a certificate issued by its insurance carrier naming CWSD as an additional 
insured and stating that the policy will not be modified or cancelled without 30 days’ 
notice to CWSD. 

c. Professional Liability Insurance  

i. Contractor shall maintain professional liability insurance applying to all activities 
performed under this Contract with limits not less than One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) in the aggregate. 

ii. Effective date:  Prior to commencement of the performance of this Contract. 

iii. Contractor will maintain professional liability insurance during the term of this Contract 
and for a period of three (3) years after termination of this Contract unless waived by the 
CWSD.  In the event of non-renewal or other lapse in coverage during the term of this 
Contract or the three (3) year period described above, Contractor shall purchase 
Extended Reporting Period coverage for claims arising out of Contractor’s negligence 
acts, errors and omissions committed during the term of the Professional Liability Policy. 
The Extended Reporting Period shall continue through a minimum of three (3) years after 
termination date of this Contract. 

iv. Prior to commencing the activities that constitute the Project, DISTRICT shall deliver to 
CWSD a certificate issued by its insurance carrier naming CWSD as an additional 
insured and stating that the policy will not be modified or cancelled without 30 days’ 
notice to CWSD. 



AGENDA ITEM #11



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board Members 
 
FROM: Edwin James  
 
DATE: June 16, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item #11 – For Possible Action:  Approval of Contract #2021-3 

Dayton Valley Conservation District – River Projects Inventory Project in an 
amount not to exceed $100,000 

 
DISCUSSION:  Attached is Contract #2021-3 with Dayton Valley Conservation District.  
Funding for this project was approved in the 2021-22 budget.  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the contract as submitted.  
 
 



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-2 

Page 1 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-2:   
CVCD – West Fork Bank Stabilization 

 

Agreement 
 

Addressing Funding from Carson Water Subconservancy District to the  
CARSON VALLEY CONSERVATION DISTRICT for  

West Fork Bank Stabilization Project 
 
 THIS CONTRACT dated this 16th day of June 2021, is entered into by and between CARSON VALLEY 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada (hereinafter "DISTRICT") and the 
CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada (hereinafter 
"CWSD").  

 

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, DISTRICT is a governmental subdivision of the State of Nevada a public body corporate and 
politic, organized in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 548 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS); and 

 WHEREAS, CWSD is a water subconservancy district created and organized under the provisions of 
Chapter 541 of NRS; and 

 WHEREAS, this Contract is entered into under the provisions of NRS 277.180 and must be ratified by 
appropriate official action of the governing body of each party as a condition precedent to its entry into force; and  

 WHEREAS, CWSD and DISTRICT each possess common objectives and responsibilities regarding the 
West Fork Bank Stabilization Project, and  

 WHEREAS, CWSD has agreed to set aside $100,000 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021, and to 
grant DISTRICT said amount to assist with the West Fork Bank Stabilization Project. 

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants herein contained, it is 
mutually agreed by and between the parties as follows:  

1. CONTRACT TERM: 

a. CWSD hereby grants to DISTRICT $100,000 to assist with the West Fork Bank Stabilization 
Project which is further identified and described in Exhibit "A." 

b. DISTRICT will submit requests for funding periodically.  The request for funding shall be 
accompanied by a description of what the funds will be used for and shall reference this Contract.  

c. CWSD commits to pay the approved amount of the request to DISTRICT within four (4) weeks of 
said request. 

d. DISTRICT will submit Project Summary Reports (see Exhibit “B”), including before and after 
project pictures, project goals, etc., prior to final invoice payment or ten percent of grant funding 
will be withheld until reports are submitted.  

e. CWSD shall have no responsibility for costs exceeding $100,000.  

f. This Contract shall terminate June 30, 2022, at which time DISTRICT shall have one (1) month 
thereafter to submit its final invoice for payment related to work performed under this Contract. 

g. If circumstances arise that require a time extension to complete the project, the CWSD Board 
grants the General Manager authority to do so in a written notice to the DISTRICT. 



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-2 

Page 2 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-2:   
CVCD – West Fork Bank Stabilization 

h. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, any obligation of CWSD hereunder is 
conditioned upon CWSD's funding resources.  If for whatever reason the CWSD's funding 
resources are reduced or eliminated, CWSD reserves the right to terminate this Agreement 
immediately in writing.  CWSD will reimburse DISTRICT for all costs that occurred under this 
Agreement up to the date the Agreement is terminated. 

2. LIMITED LIABILITY AND INDEMIFICATION: 

a. The parties will not waive but rather intend to assert available NRS chapter 41 liability limitations 
in all cases. Contract liability of both parties shall not be subject to punitive damages. To the 
extent applicable, actual contract damages for any breach shall be limited by NRS 353.260 and 
NRS 354.626. 

b. Consistent with paragraph 2.a of this Contract, each party shall indemnify, hold harmless and 
defend (not excluding the others right to participate) the other party from and against all liability, 
claims, actions, damages, losses, and expenses, including, but not limited to, reasonable 
attorneys’ fees and costs, arising out of any alleged negligent or willful acts or omissions of the 
indemnifying party, its officers, employees, and agents. Such obligation shall not be construed to 
negate, abridge, or otherwise reduce any other right or obligation of indemnity which would 
otherwise exist as to any party or person described in this paragraph. 

c. The indemnification obligation under this paragraph is conditioned upon the receipt of written 
notice of claim by the indemnified party to the indemnifying party within thirty (30) days. The hold 
harmless and indemnification provision shall not apply to attorneys’ fees and costs for the 
indemnified party’s chosen right to participate with legal counsel. 

d. If the DISTRICT hires a contractor to perform any portion of this project, the contractor shall add 
CWSD as an additional insured.  The contractor must carry the Liability Insurance requirements 
are described in Exhibit “C.” 

e. Prior to commencing the activities that constitute the Project, DISTRICT shall deliver to CWSD a 
certificate issued by its insurance carrier naming CWSD as an additional insured and stating that 
the policy will not be modified or cancelled without 30 days’ notice to CWSD.  

3. NOTICE:  For invoicing and notice purposes, the address of each party is as follows: 

  DISTRICT    CWSD 
  Attn:  Richard Wilkinson   Attn.: Edwin James 
  Grant Manager    General Manager 
  1702 County Rd., Ste. A   777 E. William St., #110 
  Minden, NV  89423   Carson City, NV 89706 
  (775) 782-3661 x3830   (775) 887-7456 
 

4. MISCELLANEOUS: 

a. This Contract shall be by and between the parties hereto and shall not be assignable or 
transferable. 

b. Any dispute regarding this Contract shall be decided according to the laws of the State of 
Nevada. The Parties consent to the jurisdiction of, and agree that disputes will be resolved by, the 
courts of the First Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada in Carson City. If any part of this 
Contract is declared to be unlawful, any remaining obligations shall be deemed terminated. 

c. This Contract may only be amended by consent of both parties. Any amendments must be written 
and executed with the same formality as this Contract. 



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-2 

Page 3 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-2:   
CVCD – West Fork Bank Stabilization 

d. This Contract constitutes the entire understanding between the parties and there are no 
representations, conditions, warranties, or collateral agreements (expressed or implied), statutory 
or otherwise, with respect to the subject of this Contract. 

e. The Parties are associated with each other only for the purposes and to the extent set forth in this 
contract. Each Party is a public agency separate and distinct from the other Party. Nothing 
contained in this contract may be deemed or construed to create a partnership or joint venture, to 
create relationships of an employer-employee or principal- agent, to convey ownership of any 
asset, or to otherwise create any liability for one Party whatsoever with respect to the 
indebtedness, liabilities, and obligations of the other Party. 

f. The Parties agree to keep and maintain, under general accepted accounting principles, full, true, 
and complete records, agreements, books, and documents pertaining to this contract, and at the 
request of the other Party agree to present, at any reasonable time, such records, agreements, 
books, and documents for inspection, examination, review, audit, and copying at any office where 
such records, agreements, books, and documents are maintained. 

g. Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents, including this contract, may be open to 
public inspection and copying. The Parties will have the duty to disclose unless particular 
information or documents are made confidential by law or a common law balancing of interest. To 
the extent that information or documents are made confidential, the Parties shall keep such 
information or documents confidential. 

h. This contract does not contemplate any transfer of property or ownership interest between the 
Parties and the Parties will each maintain ownership of their own facilities. 

i. Except as otherwise provided for by law or this contract, the rights and remedies of the Parties 
shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or 
equity. 

j. Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular breach of this contract or its 
material or nonmaterial terms by either Party shall not operate as a waiver by such Party of any of 
its rights or remedies as to any other breach. 

k. Neither Party shall be deemed to be in violation of this contract if it is prevented from performing 
any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public transportation, civil or military 
authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires, explosions, or acts of God, including, without 
limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or storms. In such an event the intervening cause must not 
be through the fault of the Party asserting such an excuse, and the excused Party is obligated to 
promptly perform in accordance with the terms of the contract after the intervening cause ceases. 

l. Each provision of this Agreement shall be considered severable and if for any reason any provision 
or provisions herein are determined to be invalid, unenforceable, or illegal under any existing or 
future law, such invalidity, unenforceability, or illegality shall not impair the operation of or affect 
those portions of this Agreement that are valid, enforceable, and legal. 
 

5. PROPER AUTHORITY: 

a. This Contract becomes effective when ratified by appropriate official action of the governing body 
of each party; however, the DISTRICT can submit expenses that have been incurred from July 1, 
2021, forward. 

b. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this Contract on behalf of 
each party has full power and authority to enter into this Contract and that the parties are 
authorized by law to engage in cooperative action set forth herein. 

c. This Contract shall be entered into with duplicate originals, realizing that each entity, by 
necessity, must approve and execute the subject document at different dates, times, and places. 



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-2 

Page 4 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-2:   
CVCD – West Fork Bank Stabilization 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Contract on the day and year first written above.   

 

DATED: ________________________  DATED: ________________________ 
 
 
CARSON VALLEY    CARSON WATER 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT   SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
James Settelmeyer, Chairman  Robert S. Giomi, Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST:    ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________________  _______________________________ 
J.B. Lekumberry, Secretary   Catrina Schambra, Secretary to the Board  

 
  



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-2 

Page 5 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-2:   
CVCD – West Fork Bank Stabilization 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Project Description 
 

The Carson Valley Conservation District (District) will attempt to restore vertical cutbanks that are approximately¾ 
of a mile long and 12 to15 feet high. This unstable section of river has migrated into local agricultural fields 
causing impacts to local producers. The overall goal of this project will be to use a combination of traditional rip-
rap and bioengineering techniques to stabilize the soil, improve water quality and re-establish desirable 
vegetation for wildlife. The District considers this project a high priority since this area was severely impacted by 
recent flooding events in 2017. The District will partner with CWSD, CTWCD, NDOW, USFWS, Douglas County 
and NDEP to complete this river restoration project by the spring of 2022.   

  



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-2 

Page 6 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-2:   
CVCD – West Fork Bank Stabilization 

Exhibit B 

 

Project Summary Form  

Project name  

Type of Project   

Map ID# Per Stewardship Plan Maps if previously mapped 

Date Started  

Date Completed    

Location Details/Address  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

HUC  

Contact Person   

Primary Objective (What will the project achieve? Was the objective achieved?) 

Area restored/stabilized 
Add linear feet of project/acreage/an applicable measurable unit/material used (rock, 
plants, etc.) 

Estimated Load Reduction Only if applicable 

Total Project Cost $ 

Project Partners List all partners 

 

 

 

Project Photos:  

 

Before construction:     After construction: 

 
Title: Example Photos (replace with specific project)  

 

Tracking Updates and Milestones  

Date Activity  

Add data and expand table/insert rows 
as required 

Add data and expand table/insert rows as required 

  



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-2 

Page 7 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-2:   
CVCD – West Fork Bank Stabilization 

 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

Liability Insurance 
 

a. General Liability Insurance:  Prior to commencement and for the duration of activities that 
constitute the Project that is the subject of this Contract, Contractor shall maintain commercial 
general liability (CGL) as follows:  

i. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - General Aggregate. 

ii. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - Products & Completed Operations Aggregate. 

iii. One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) - Each Occurrence. 

iv. CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 04 13 (or a substitute 
form providing equivalent coverage) and shall cover liability arising from premises, 
operations, products-completed operations, personal and advertising injury, and liability 
assumed under an insured contract [(including the tort liability of another assumed in a 
business contract)]. 

v. CWSD, its officers, employees and immune contractors shall be included as an insured 
under the CGL, using ISO additional insured endorsement CG 20 10 or CG 20 26, or a 
substitute providing equivalent coverage, including coverage under the commercial 
umbrella, if any. 

vi. This insurance shall apply as primary insurance with respect to any other insurance or 
self-insurance programs afforded to CWSD There shall be no endorsement or 
modification of the CGL to make it excess over other available insurance; alternatively, if 
the CGL states that it is excess or pro rata, the policy shall be endorsed to be primary 
with respect to the additional insured. 

vii. There shall be no endorsement or modification of the CGL limiting the scope of coverage 
for liability assumed under a contract. 

viii. Contractor waives all rights against CWSD and its agents, officers, directors, and 
employees for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the 
commercial general liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance maintained 
pursuant to this Contract. Insurer shall endorse CGL policy as required to waive 
subrogation against CWSD with respect to any loss paid under the policy.  

ix. Prior to commencing the activities that constitute the Project, DISTRICT shall deliver to 
CWSD a certificate issued by its insurance carrier naming CWSD as an additional 
insured and stating that the policy will not be modified or cancelled without 30 days’ 
notice to CWSD. 

b. Business Automobile Liability Insurance:   

i. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability and, if necessary, commercial umbrella 
liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each accident for bodily injury 
and property damage. 



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-2 

Page 8 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-2:   
CVCD – West Fork Bank Stabilization 

ii.  Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of owned, hired, and non-owned autos (as 
applicable).  Coverage as required above shall be written on ISO form CA 00 01, CA 00 
05, CA 00 25, or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage. 

iii.  Contractor waives all rights against CWSD and its agents, officers, directors, and 
employees for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the 
automobile liability or other liability insurance obtained by Contractor pursuant this 
Contract.  

iv.  Prior to commencing the activities that constitute the Project, DISTRICT shall deliver to 
CWSD a certificate issued by its insurance carrier naming CWSD as an additional 
insured and stating that the policy will not be modified or cancelled without 30 days’ 
notice to CWSD. 

c. Professional Liability Insurance  

i. Contractor shall maintain professional liability insurance applying to all activities 
performed under this Contract with limits not less than One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) in the aggregate. 

ii. Effective date:  Prior to commencement of the performance of this Contract. 

iii. Contractor will maintain professional liability insurance during the term of this Contract 
and for a period of three (3) years after termination of this Contract unless waived by the 
CWSD.  In the event of non-renewal or other lapse in coverage during the term of this 
Contract or the three (3) year period described above, Contractor shall purchase 
Extended Reporting Period coverage for claims arising out of Contractor’s negligence 
acts, errors and omissions committed during the term of the Professional Liability Policy. 
The Extended Reporting Period shall continue through a minimum of three (3) years after 
termination date of this Contract. 

iv. Prior to commencing the activities that constitute the Project, DISTRICT shall deliver to 
CWSD a certificate issued by its insurance carrier naming CWSD as an additional 
insured and stating that the policy will not be modified or cancelled without 30 days’ 
notice to CWSD. 



AGENDA ITEM #12



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board Members 
 
FROM: Edwin James  
 
DATE: June 16, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item #12 – For Possible Action:  Approval of Contract #2021-3 

Dayton Valley Conservation District – River Projects Inventory Project in an 
amount not to exceed $100,000 

 
DISCUSSION:  Attached is Contract #2021-3 with Dayton Valley Conservation District.  
Funding for this project was approved in the 2021-22 budget.  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the contract as submitted.  
 
 



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-3 
 

Page 1 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-3: 
DVCD – River Projects Inventory 

Agreement 
 

Addressing Funding from Carson Water Subconservancy District to the  
DAYTON VALLEY CONSERVATION DISTRICT for  

River Projects Inventory 
 
 THIS CONTRACT dated this  16th day of June 2021, is entered into by and between DAYTON VALLEY 

CONSERVATION DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada (hereinafter "DISTRICT") and the 

CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada (hereinafter 

"CWSD").  

 

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, DISTRICT is a governmental subdivision of the State of Nevada a public body corporate and 
politic, organized in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 548 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS); and 

 WHEREAS, CWSD is a water subconservancy district created and organized under the provisions of 
Chapter 541 of NRS; and 

 WHEREAS, this Contract is entered into under the provisions of NRS 277.180 and must be ratified by 
appropriate official action of the governing body of each party as a condition precedent to its entry into force; and  

 WHEREAS, CWSD and DISTRICT each possess common objectives and responsibilities regarding the 
Carson River; and  

 WHEREAS, DISTRICT has requested $100,000 funding during fiscal year 2021-22 for the River Projects 
Inventory, and  

 WHEREAS, CWSD has agreed to set aside $100,000 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021, and to 
grant DISTRICT said amount to assist with the River Projects Inventory. 

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants herein contained, it is 
mutually agreed by and between the parties as follows:  

1. CONTRACT TERM: 

a. CWSD hereby grants to DISTRICT $100,000 to assist with River Projects Inventory which is 
further identified and described in Exhibit "A." 

b. DISTRICT will submit requests for funding periodically.  The request for funding shall be 
accompanied by a description of what the funds will be used for and shall reference this Contract.  

c. CWSD commits to pay the approved amount of the request to DISTRICT within four (4) weeks of 
said request. 

d. DISTRICT will submit Project Summary Reports (see Exhibit “B”), including before and after 
project pictures, project goals, etc., prior to final invoice payment or ten percent of grant funding 
will be withheld until reports are submitted.  

e. CWSD shall have no responsibility for costs exceeding $100,000.  

f. This Contract shall terminate June 30, 2022, at which time DISTRICT shall have one (1) month 
thereafter to submit its final invoice for payment related to work performed under this Contract. 



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-3 
 

Page 2 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-3: 
DVCD – River Projects Inventory 

g. If circumstances arise that require a time extension to complete the project, the CWSD Board 
grants the General Manager authority to do so in a written notice to the DISTRICT. 

h. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, any obligation of CWSD hereunder is 
conditioned upon CWSD's funding resources.  If for whatever reason the CWSD's funding 
resources are reduced or eliminated, CWSD reserves the right to terminate this Agreement 
immediately in writing.  CWSD will reimburse DISTRICT for all costs that occurred under this 
Agreement up to the date the Agreement is terminated. 

2. LIMITED LIABILITY AND INDEMIFICATION: 

a. The parties will not waive but rather intend to assert available NRS chapter 41 liability limitations 
in all cases. Contract liability of both parties shall not be subject to punitive damages. To the 
extent applicable, actual contract damages for any breach shall be limited by NRS 353.260 and 
NRS 354.626. 

b. Consistent with paragraph 2.a of this Contract, each party shall indemnify, hold harmless and 
defend (not excluding the others right to participate) the other party from and against all liability, 
claims, actions, damages, losses, and expenses, including, but not limited to, reasonable 
attorneys’ fees and costs, arising out of any alleged negligent or willful acts or omissions of the 
indemnifying party, its officers, employees, and agents. Such obligation shall not be construed to 
negate, abridge, or otherwise reduce any other right or obligation of indemnity which would 
otherwise exist as to any party or person described in this paragraph. 

c. The indemnification obligation under this paragraph is conditioned upon the receipt of written 
notice of claim by the indemnified party to the indemnifying party within thirty (30) days. The hold 
harmless and indemnification provision shall not apply to attorneys’ fees and costs for the 
indemnified party’s chosen right to participate with legal counsel. 

d. If the DISTRICT hires a contractor to perform any portion of this project, the contractor shall add 
CWSD as an additional insured.  The contractor must carry the Liability Insurance requirements 
are described in Exhibit “C.” 

e. Prior to commencing the activities that constitute the Project, DISTRICT shall deliver to CWSD a 
certificate issued by its insurance carrier naming CWSD as an additional insured and stating that 
the policy will not be modified or cancelled without 30 days’ notice to CWSD.  

3. NOTICE:  For invoicing and notice purposes, the address of each party is as follows: 

  DISTRICT    CWSD 
  Attn:  Rob Holley   Attn: Edwin James 
  District Manager   General Manager 
  P.O. Box 1807    777 E. William St., #110 
  Dayton, NV  89403   Carson City, NV 89706 
  (775) 246-1999    (775) 887-7456 
 

4. MISCELLANEOUS: 

a. This Contract shall be by and between the parties hereto and shall not be assignable or 
transferable. 

b. Any dispute regarding this Contract shall be decided according to the laws of the State of 
Nevada. The Parties consent to the jurisdiction of, and agree that disputes will be resolved by, the 
courts of the First Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada in Carson City. If any part of this 
Contract is declared to be unlawful, any remaining obligations shall be deemed terminated. 



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-3 
 

Page 3 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-3: 
DVCD – River Projects Inventory 

c. This Contract may only be amended by consent of both parties. Any amendments must be written 
and executed with the same formality as this Contract. 

d. This Contract constitutes the entire understanding between the parties and there are no 
representations, conditions, warranties, or collateral agreements (expressed or implied), statutory 
or otherwise, with respect to the subject of this Contract. 

e. The Parties are associated with each other only for the purposes and to the extent set forth in this 
contract. Each Party is a public agency separate and distinct from the other Party. Nothing 
contained in this contract may be deemed or construed to create a partnership or joint venture, to 
create relationships of an employer-employee or principal- agent, to convey ownership of any 
asset, or to otherwise create any liability for one Party whatsoever with respect to the 
indebtedness, liabilities, and obligations of the other Party. 

f. The Parties agree to keep and maintain, under general accepted accounting principles, full, true, 
and complete records, agreements, books, and documents pertaining to this contract, and at the 
request of the other Party agree to present, at any reasonable time, such records, agreements, 
books, and documents for inspection, examination, review, audit, and copying at any office where 
such records, agreements, books, and documents are maintained. 

g. Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents, including this contract, may be open to 
public inspection and copying. The Parties will have the duty to disclose unless information or 
documents are made confidential by law or a common law balancing of interest. To the extent 
that information or documents are made confidential, the Parties shall keep such information or 
documents confidential. 

h. This contract does not contemplate any transfer of property or ownership interest between the 
Parties and the Parties will each maintain ownership of their own facilities. 

i. Except as otherwise provided for by law or this contract, the rights and remedies of the Parties 
shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or 
equity. 

j. Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular breach of this contract or its 
material or nonmaterial terms by either Party shall not operate as a waiver by such Party of any of 
its rights or remedies as to any other breach. 

k. Neither Party shall be deemed to be in violation of this contract if it is prevented from performing 
any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public transportation, civil or military 
authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires, explosions, or acts of God, including, without 
limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or storms. In such an event the intervening cause must not 
be through the fault of the Party asserting such an excuse, and the excused Party is obligated to 
promptly perform in accordance with the terms of the contract after the intervening cause ceases. 

l. Each provision of this Agreement shall be considered severable and if for any reason any provision 
or provisions herein are determined to be invalid, unenforceable, or illegal under any existing or 
future law, such invalidity, unenforceability, or illegality shall not impair the operation of or affect 
those portions of this Agreement that are valid, enforceable, and legal. 
 

5. PROPER AUTHORITY: 

a. This Contract becomes effective when ratified by appropriate official action of the governing body 
of each party; however, the DISTRICT can submit expenses that have been incurred from July 1, 
2021, forward. 

b. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this Contract on behalf of 
each party has full power and authority to enter into this Contract and that the parties are 



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-3 
 

Page 4 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-3: 
DVCD – River Projects Inventory 

authorized by law to engage in cooperative action set forth herein. 

c. This Contract shall be entered into with duplicate originals, realizing that each entity, by 
necessity, must approve and execute the subject document at different dates, times, and places. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Contract on the day and year first written above.   

 

DATED: ________________________   DATED: ________________________ 
 
 
DAYTON VALLEY     CARSON WATER 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT    SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 
 
 
_______________________________  _______________________________ 
Ty Minor, Chairman    Robert S. Giomi, Chairman 
 
 
 
ATTEST:     ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Rob Holley, District Manager    Catrina Schambra, Secretary to the Board  

  



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-3 
 

Page 5 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-3: 
DVCD – River Projects Inventory 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Project Description 
 

This project is designed to survey present condition of completed projects, establish a prioritized list of repairs 
based on various criteria, and begin repairs accordingly. Additionally, this project addresses the need for an 
updated and current project inventory (location, construction type/size, etc.) for submission to State Lands as part 
of an ongoing effort to inventory projects completed on State property, and to establish an efficient permitting 
process for maintenance of those projects. This is part of DVCD's plan to address severe and ongoing bank 
erosion, loss of mature cottonwood trees (into the river), and loss of private agricultural land.  The project 
objectives are (1) Thoroughly inspect each project site (30+) and establish a prioritized list of project repairs 
(based on multiple factors including affected infrastructure, utilities present, riparian function, mercury 
sequestration, cottonwood gallery protection, etc.); (2) Establish project site list (including all completed projects 
regardless of repair needs) for State Land's use in establishing inventory and efficient multi-year permitting; and 
(3) Begin implementing repair efforts based on the aforementioned priorities.    



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-3 
 

Page 6 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-3: 
DVCD – River Projects Inventory 

Exhibit B 

 

Project Summary Form  

Project name  

Type of Project   

Map ID# Per Stewardship Plan Maps if previously mapped 

Date Started  

Date Completed    

Location Details/Address  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

HUC  

Contact Person   

Primary Objective (What will the project achieve? Was the objective achieved?) 

Area restored/stabilized 
Add linear feet of project/acreage/an applicable measurable unit/material used (rock, 
plants, etc.) 

Estimated Load Reduction Only if applicable 

Total Project Cost $ 

Project Partners List all partners 

 

 

 

Project Photos:  

 

Before construction:     After construction: 

 
Title: Example Photos (replace with specific project)  

Tracking Updates and Milestones  

Date Activity  

Add data and expand table/insert rows 
as required 

Add data and expand table/insert rows as required 

  



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-3 
 

Page 7 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-3: 
DVCD – River Projects Inventory 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 
 

Liability Insurance 
 

a. General Liability Insurance:  Prior to commencement and for the duration of activities that 
constitute the Project that is the subject of this Contract, Contractor shall maintain commercial 
general liability (CGL) as follows:  

i. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - General Aggregate. 

ii. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - Products & Completed Operations Aggregate. 

iii. One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) - Each Occurrence. 

iv. CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 04 13 (or a substitute 
form providing equivalent coverage) and shall cover liability arising from premises, 
operations, products-completed operations, personal and advertising injury, and liability 
assumed under an insured contract [(including the tort liability of another assumed in a 
business contract)]. 

v. CWSD, its officers, employees and immune contractors shall be included as an insured 
under the CGL, using ISO additional insured endorsement CG 20 10 or CG 20 26, or a 
substitute providing equivalent coverage, including coverage under the commercial 
umbrella, if any. 

vi. This insurance shall apply as primary insurance with respect to any other insurance or 
self-insurance programs afforded to CWSD There shall be no endorsement or 
modification of the CGL to make it excess over other available insurance; alternatively, if 
the CGL states that it is excess or pro rata, the policy shall be endorsed to be primary 
with respect to the additional insured. 

vii. There shall be no endorsement or modification of the CGL limiting the scope of coverage 
for liability assumed under a contract. 

viii. Contractor waives all rights against CWSD and its agents, officers, directors, and 
employees for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the 
commercial general liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance maintained 
pursuant to this Contract. Insurer shall endorse CGL policy as required to waive 
subrogation against CWSD with respect to any loss paid under the policy.  

ix. Prior to commencing the activities that constitute the Project, DISTRICT shall deliver to 
CWSD a certificate issued by its insurance carrier naming CWSD as an additional 
insured and stating that the policy will not be modified or cancelled without 30 days’ 
notice to CWSD. 

b. Business Automobile Liability Insurance:   

i. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability and, if necessary, commercial umbrella 
liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each accident for bodily injury 
and property damage. 



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-3 
 

Page 8 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-3: 
DVCD – River Projects Inventory 

ii.  Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of owned, hired, and non-owned autos (as 
applicable).  Coverage as required above shall be written on ISO form CA 00 01, CA 00 
05, CA 00 25, or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage. 

iii.  Contractor waives all rights against CWSD and its agents, officers, directors, and 
employees for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the 
automobile liability or other liability insurance obtained by Contractor pursuant this 
Contract.  

iv.  Prior to commencing the activities that constitute the Project, DISTRICT shall deliver to 
CWSD a certificate issued by its insurance carrier naming CWSD as an additional 
insured and stating that the policy will not be modified or cancelled without 30 days’ 
notice to CWSD. 

c. Professional Liability Insurance  

i. Contractor shall maintain professional liability insurance applying to all activities 
performed under this Contract with limits not less than One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) in the aggregate. 

ii. Effective date:  Prior to commencement of the performance of this Contract. 

iii. Contractor will maintain professional liability insurance during the term of this Contract 
and for a period of three (3) years after termination of this Contract unless waived by the 
CWSD.  In the event of non-renewal or other lapse in coverage during the term of this 
Contract or the three (3) year period described above, Contractor shall purchase 
Extended Reporting Period coverage for claims arising out of Contractor’s negligence 
acts, errors and omissions committed during the term of the Professional Liability Policy. 
The Extended Reporting Period shall continue through a minimum of three (3) years after 
termination date of this Contract. 

iv. Prior to commencing the activities that constitute the Project, DISTRICT shall deliver to 
CWSD a certificate issued by its insurance carrier naming CWSD as an additional 
insured and stating that the policy will not be modified or cancelled without 30 days’ 
notice to CWSD. 



AGENDA ITEM #13



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board Members 
 
FROM: Edwin James  
 
DATE: June 16, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item #13 – For Possible Action:  Approval of Contract #2021-4 

Lahontan Conservation District - Lower Carson River Project in an amount 
not to exceed $25,000 

 
DISCUSSION:  Attached is Contract #2021-4 with Lahontan Conservation District.  
Funding for this project was approved in the 2021-22 budget.  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the contract as submitted.  
 
 



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-4 
 

Page 1 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-4:  
LCD – Lower Carson River Project 

 

Agreement 
 

Addressing Funding from Carson Water Subconservancy District to the  
LAHONTAN CONSERVATION DISTRICT for  

Lower Carson River Project 
 
 THIS CONTRACT dated this 16th day of June 2021, is entered into by and between LAHONTAN 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada (hereinafter "DISTRICT") and the 
CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada (hereinafter 
"CWSD").  

 

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, DISTRICT is a governmental subdivision of the State of Nevada a public body corporate and 
politic, organized in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 548 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS); and 

 WHEREAS, CWSD is a water subconservancy district created and organized under the provisions of 
Chapter 541 of NRS; and 

 WHEREAS, this Contract is entered into under the provisions of NRS 277.180 and must be ratified by 
appropriate official action of the governing body of each party as a condition precedent to its entry into force; and  

 WHEREAS, CWSD and DISTRICT each possess common objectives and responsibilities regarding the 
Carson River; and  

 WHEREAS, DISTRICT has requested $25,000 funding during fiscal year 2021-22 for the Lower Carson 
River Project, and  

 WHEREAS, CWSD has agreed to set aside $25,000 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021, and to 
grant DISTRICT said amount to assist with the Lower Carson River Project. 

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants herein contained, it is 
mutually agreed by and between the parties as follows:  

1. CONTRACT TERM: 

a. CWSD hereby grants to DISTRICT $25,000 to assist with Lower Carson River Project which is 
further identified and described in Exhibit "A." 

b. DISTRICT will submit requests for funding periodically.  The request for funding shall be 
accompanied by a description of what the funds will be used for and shall reference this Contract.  

c. CWSD commits to pay the approved amount of the request to DISTRICT within four (4) weeks of 
said request. 

d. DISTRICT will submit Project Summary Reports (see Exhibit “B”), including before and after 
project pictures, project goals, etc., prior to final invoice payment or ten percent of grant funding 
will be withheld until reports are submitted.  

e. CWSD shall have no responsibility for costs exceeding $25,000.  

f. This Contract shall terminate June 30, 2022, at which time DISTRICT shall have one (1) month 



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-4 
 

Page 2 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-4:  
LCD – Lower Carson River Project 

thereafter to submit its final invoice for payment related to work performed under this Contract. 

g. If circumstances arise that require a time extension to complete the project, the CWSD Board 
grants the General Manager authority to do so in a written notice to the DISTRICT. 

h. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, any obligation of CWSD hereunder is 
conditioned upon CWSD's funding resources.  If for whatever reason the CWSD's funding 
resources are reduced or eliminated, CWSD reserves the right to terminate this Agreement 
immediately in writing.  CWSD will reimburse DISTRICT for all costs that occurred under this 
Agreement up to the date the Agreement is terminated. 

2. LIMITED LIABILITY AND INDEMIFICATION: 

a. The parties will not waive but rather intend to assert available NRS chapter 41 liability limitations 
in all cases. Contract liability of both parties shall not be subject to punitive damages. To the 
extent applicable, actual contract damages for any breach shall be limited by NRS 353.260 and 
NRS 354.626. 

b. Consistent with paragraph 2.a of this Contract, each party shall indemnify, hold harmless and 
defend (not excluding the others right to participate) the other party from and against all liability, 
claims, actions, damages, losses, and expenses, including, but not limited to, reasonable 
attorneys’ fees and costs, arising out of any alleged negligent or willful acts or omissions of the 
indemnifying party, its officers, employees, and agents. Such obligation shall not be construed to 
negate, abridge, or otherwise reduce any other right or obligation of indemnity which would 
otherwise exist as to any party or person described in this paragraph. 

c. The indemnification obligation under this paragraph is conditioned upon the receipt of written 
notice of claim by the indemnified party to the indemnifying party within thirty (30) days. The hold 
harmless and indemnification provision shall not apply to attorneys’ fees and costs for the 
indemnified party’s chosen right to participate with legal counsel. 

d. If the DISTRICT hires a contractor to perform any portion of this project, the contractor shall add 
CWSD as an additional insured.  The contractor must carry the Liability Insurance requirements 
are described in Exhibit “C.” 

e. Prior to commencing the activities that constitute the Project, DISTRICT shall deliver to CWSD a 
certificate issued by its insurance carrier naming CWSD as an additional insured and stating that 
the policy will not be modified or cancelled without 30 days’ notice to CWSD.  

3. NOTICE:  For invoicing and notice purposes, the address of each party is as follows: 

  LCD     CWSD 

  Attn.: Christy Sullivan   Attn.: Edwin James 

  Conservation Specialist   General Manager 

  111 Sheckler Rd.   777 E. William St., #110 

  Fallon, NV 89406   Carson City, NV 89706 

  (775) 423-5124    (775) 887-7456 
 

4. MISCELLANEOUS: 

a. This Contract shall be by and between the parties hereto and shall not be assignable or 
transferable. 

b. Any dispute regarding this Contract shall be decided according to the laws of the State of 
Nevada. The Parties consent to the jurisdiction of, and agree that disputes will be resolved by, the 



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-4 
 

Page 3 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-4:  
LCD – Lower Carson River Project 

courts of the First Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada in Carson City. If any part of this 
Contract is declared to be unlawful, any remaining obligations shall be deemed terminated. 

c. This Contract may only be amended by consent of both parties. Any amendments must be written 
and executed with the same formality as this Contract. 

d. This Contract constitutes the entire understanding between the parties and there are no 
representations, conditions, warranties, or collateral agreements (expressed or implied), statutory 
or otherwise, with respect to the subject of this Contract. 

e. The Parties are associated with each other only for the purposes and to the extent set forth in this 
contract. Each Party is a public agency separate and distinct from the other Party. Nothing 
contained in this contract may be deemed or construed to create a partnership or joint venture, to 
create relationships of an employer-employee or principal- agent, to convey ownership of any 
asset, or to otherwise create any liability for one Party whatsoever with respect to the 
indebtedness, liabilities, and obligations of the other Party. 

f. The Parties agree to keep and maintain, under general accepted accounting principles, full, true, 
and complete records, agreements, books, and documents pertaining to this contract, and at the 
request of the other Party agree to present, at any reasonable time, such records, agreements, 
books, and documents for inspection, examination, review, audit, and copying at any office where 
such records, agreements, books, and documents are maintained. 

g. Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents, including this contract, may be open to 
public inspection and copying. The Parties will have the duty to disclose unless particular 
information or documents are made confidential by law or a common law balancing of interest. To 
the extent that information or documents are made confidential, the Parties shall keep such 
information or documents confidential. 

h. This contract does not contemplate any transfer of property or ownership interest between the 
Parties and the Parties will each maintain ownership of their own facilities. 

i. Except as otherwise provided for by law or this contract, the rights and remedies of the Parties 
shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or 
equity. 

j. Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular breach of this contract or its 
material or nonmaterial terms by either Party shall not operate as a waiver by such Party of any of 
its rights or remedies as to any other breach. 

k. Neither Party shall be deemed to be in violation of this contract if it is prevented from performing 
any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public transportation, civil or military 
authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires, explosions, or acts of God, including, without 
limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or storms. In such an event the intervening cause must not 
be through the fault of the Party asserting such an excuse, and the excused Party is obligated to 
promptly perform in accordance with the terms of the contract after the intervening cause ceases. 

l. Each provision of this Agreement shall be considered severable and if for any reason any provision 
or provisions herein are determined to be invalid, unenforceable, or illegal under any existing or 
future law, such invalidity, unenforceability, or illegality shall not impair the operation of or affect 
those portions of this Agreement that are valid, enforceable, and legal. 
 

5. PROPER AUTHORITY: 

a. This Contract becomes effective when ratified by appropriate official action of the governing body 
of each party; however, the DISTRICT can submit expenses that have been incurred from July 1, 
2021, forward. 



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-4 
 

Page 4 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-4:  
LCD – Lower Carson River Project 

b. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this Contract on behalf of 
each party has full power and authority to enter into this Contract and that the parties are 
authorized by law to engage in cooperative action set forth herein. 

c. This Contract shall be entered into with duplicate originals, realizing that each entity, by 
necessity, must approve and execute the subject document at different dates, times, and places. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Contract on the day and year first written above.   

 

DATED: ________________________  DATED: ________________________ 
 
 
LAHONTAN     CARSON WATER 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT   SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 
 
____________________________  _____________________________ 
Bill Washburn, Chairman   Robert S. Giomi, Chairman 
  
 
ATTEST:     ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________  _____________________________ 
Morena Heser     Catrina Schambra  
Secretary/Treasurer    Secretary to the Board 

  



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-4 
 

Page 5 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-4:  
LCD – Lower Carson River Project 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Project Description 
 

The project will prevent and minimize property loss and other damage during flood condition, maintain a clear 
channel to enable citizens to utilize the river for recreation, and maintain river flow velocity to prevent stagnant 
pools that pose health risks.  The project will also include removal of dead vegetation and debris, beavers and 
beaver dams, and clear brush and sediment along the Carson River.  



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-4 
 

Page 6 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-4:  
LCD – Lower Carson River Project 

Exhibit B 

 

Project Summary Form  

Project name  

Type of Project   

Map ID# Per Stewardship Plan Maps if previously mapped 

Date Started  

Date Completed    

Location Details/Address  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

HUC  

Contact Person   

Primary Objective (What will the project achieve? Was the objective achieved?) 

Area restored/stabilized 
Add linear feet of project/acreage/an applicable measurable unit/material used (rock, 
plants, etc.) 

Estimated Load Reduction Only if applicable 

Total Project Cost $ 

Project Partners List all partners 

 

 

 

Project Photos:  

 

Before construction:     After construction: 

 
Title: Example Photos (replace with specific project)  

Tracking Updates and Milestones  

Date Activity  

Add data and expand table/insert rows 
as required 

Add data and expand table/insert rows as required 

  



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-4 
 

Page 7 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-4:  
LCD – Lower Carson River Project 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 
 

Liability Insurance 
 

a. General Liability Insurance:  Prior to commencement and for the duration of activities that 
constitute the Project that is the subject of this Contract, Contractor shall maintain commercial 
general liability (CGL) as follows:  

i. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - General Aggregate. 

ii. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - Products & Completed Operations Aggregate. 

iii. One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) - Each Occurrence. 

iv. CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 04 13 (or a substitute 
form providing equivalent coverage) and shall cover liability arising from premises, 
operations, products-completed operations, personal and advertising injury, and liability 
assumed under an insured contract [(including the tort liability of another assumed in a 
business contract)]. 

v. CWSD, its officers, employees and immune contractors shall be included as an insured 
under the CGL, using ISO additional insured endorsement CG 20 10 or CG 20 26, or a 
substitute providing equivalent coverage, including coverage under the commercial 
umbrella, if any. 

vi. This insurance shall apply as primary insurance with respect to any other insurance or 
self-insurance programs afforded to CWSD There shall be no endorsement or 
modification of the CGL to make it excess over other available insurance; alternatively, if 
the CGL states that it is excess or pro rata, the policy shall be endorsed to be primary 
with respect to the additional insured. 

vii. There shall be no endorsement or modification of the CGL limiting the scope of coverage 
for liability assumed under a contract. 

viii. Contractor waives all rights against CWSD and its agents, officers, directors, and 
employees for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the 
commercial general liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance maintained 
pursuant to this Contract. Insurer shall endorse CGL policy as required to waive 
subrogation against CWSD with respect to any loss paid under the policy.  

ix. Prior to commencing the activities that constitute the Project, DISTRICT shall deliver to 
CWSD a certificate issued by its insurance carrier naming CWSD as an additional 
insured and stating that the policy will not be modified or cancelled without 30 days’ 
notice to CWSD. 

b. Business Automobile Liability Insurance:   

i. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability and, if necessary, commercial umbrella 
liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each accident for bodily injury 
and property damage. 



CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-4 
 

Page 8 of 8 
CWSD STATE CONTRACT #2021-4:  
LCD – Lower Carson River Project 

ii.  Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of owned, hired, and non-owned autos (as 
applicable).  Coverage as required above shall be written on ISO form CA 00 01, CA 00 
05, CA 00 25, or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage. 

iii.  Contractor waives all rights against CWSD and its agents, officers, directors, and 
employees for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the 
automobile liability or other liability insurance obtained by Contractor pursuant this 
Contract.  

iv.  Prior to commencing the activities that constitute the Project, DISTRICT shall deliver to 
CWSD a certificate issued by its insurance carrier naming CWSD as an additional 
insured and stating that the policy will not be modified or cancelled without 30 days’ 
notice to CWSD. 

c. Professional Liability Insurance  

i. Contractor shall maintain professional liability insurance applying to all activities 
performed under this Contract with limits not less than One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) in the aggregate. 

ii. Effective date:  Prior to commencement of the performance of this Contract. 

iii. Contractor will maintain professional liability insurance during the term of this Contract 
and for a period of three (3) years after termination of this Contract unless waived by the 
CWSD.  In the event of non-renewal or other lapse in coverage during the term of this 
Contract or the three (3) year period described above, Contractor shall purchase 
Extended Reporting Period coverage for claims arising out of Contractor’s negligence 
acts, errors and omissions committed during the term of the Professional Liability Policy. 
The Extended Reporting Period shall continue through a minimum of three (3) years after 
termination date of this Contract. 

iv. Prior to commencing the activities that constitute the Project, DISTRICT shall deliver to 
CWSD a certificate issued by its insurance carrier naming CWSD as an additional 
insured and stating that the policy will not be modified or cancelled without 30 days’ 
notice to CWSD. 



AGENDA ITEM #14



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board Members 
 
FROM: Edwin James  
 
DATE: June 16, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item #14 – For Possible Action:  Approval of Non-Profit Agreement 

#2021-5 Sierra NV Journeys – Family Watershed Nights in amount to exceed 
$3,280 

 
DISCUSSION:  Attached is Non-Profit Agreement #2021-5 with Sierra Nevada Journeys.  
Funding for this project was approved in the 2021-22 budget.  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the agreement as submitted.  
 
 



CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-5 

1 of 7 
 
Non-Profit Agreement #2021-5 SNJ – Family Watershed Nights 

 

Agreement 
 

Addressing Funding from Carson Water Subconservancy  
to Sierra Nevada Journeys for 

to Assist with Family Watershed Nights 
  
 This Agreement dated this 16th day of June 2021, is entered into by and between Sierra Nevada 
Journeys, a non-profit association (hereinafter "SNJ") and the CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY 
DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada (hereinafter "CWSD").   

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, SNJ is a 501(C)(3) non-profit organization; and 

 WHEREAS, SNJ has organized a program for Family Watershed Nights, which is further 
described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference; and 

 WHEREAS, CWSD is a water subconservancy district created and organized under the 
provisions of Chapter 541 of NRS; and 

 WHEREAS, this Contract is entered into under the provisions of NRS 277.180 and must be 
ratified by appropriate official action of the governing body of each party as a condition precedent to its 
entry into force; and 

 WHEREAS, CWSD and SNJ each possess common objectives and responsibilities regarding the 
Carson River; and  

 WHEREAS, SNJ has requested funding to perform work during fiscal year 2020-21 on the Family 
Watershed Nights; and 

 WHEREAS, CWSD has agreed to set aside $3,280 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021, and 
to grant SNJ said amount to assist with the projects set forth in Exhibit "A;" and 

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants herein 
contained, it is mutually agreed by and between the parties as follows:  

1. CONTRACT TERM: 

CWSD hereby grants to SNJ $3,280 to assist with Family Watershed Nights: 

a As identified and described in Exhibit "A." 

b SNJ will submit requests for funding periodically.  The request for funding shall be 
accompanied by a description of what the funds will be used for and shall reference this 
Contract.  

c CWSD commits to pay the approved amount of the request to SNJ within four (4) weeks 
of said request. 

d SNJ will submit Project Summary Reports (see Exhibit “B”), including before and after 
project pictures, project goals, etc., prior to final invoice payment or ten percent of grant 
funding will be withheld until reports are submitted.  

e CWSD shall have no responsibility for costs exceeding $3,280.   

f This Contract shall terminate June 30, 2022, at which time SNJ shall have one (1) month 
thereafter to submit its final invoice for payment related to work performed under this 



CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-5 

2 of 7 
 
Non-Profit Agreement #2021-5 SNJ – Family Watershed Nights 

Contract. 

g If circumstances arise that require a time extension to complete the project, the CWSD 
Board grants the General Manager authority to do so in a written notice to SNJ. 

h Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, any obligation of CWSD 
hereunder is conditioned upon CWSD's funding resources.  If for whatever reason the 
CWSD's funding resources are reduced or eliminated, CWSD reserves the right to 
terminate this Agreement immediately in writing.  CWSD will reimburse SNJ for all costs 
that occurred under this Agreement up to the date the Agreement is terminated. 

2. LIMITED LIABILITY AND INDEMIFICATION: 

a. Each party shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend (not excluding the others right to 
participate) the other party from and against all liability, claims, actions, damages, losses, 
and expenses, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, arising 
out of any alleged negligent or willful acts or omissions of the indemnifying party, its 
officers, employees and agents.  Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, 
abridge, or otherwise reduce any other right or obligation of indemnity which would 
otherwise exist as to any party or person described in this paragraph. 

b. The indemnification obligation under this paragraph is conditioned upon the receipt of 
written notice of claim by the indemnified party to the indemnifying party within thirty (30) 
days. The hold harmless and indemnification provision shall not apply to attorneys’ fees 
and costs for the indemnified party’s chosen right to participate with legal counsel. 

c. The parties acknowledge or agree that the contract was written and agreed by both 
parties. 

d. Prior to the institution of any litigation the parties agree to mediate. 

e. Prior to commencing the activities that constitute the Project, SNJ shall deliver to CWSD 
a certificate issued by its insurance carrier naming CWSD as an additional insured and 
stating that the policy will not be modified or cancelled without 30 days’ notice to CWSD. 

3. SNJ shall provide CWSD insurance as follows:   

a. General Liability Insurance:  Prior to commencement and for the duration of activities that 
constitute the Project that is the subject of this Contract, SNJ shall maintain commercial 
general liability (CGL) as follows:  

i. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - General Aggregate. 

ii. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - Products & Completed Operations 
Aggregate. 

iii. One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) - Each Occurrence. 

iv. CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 04 13 (or a 
substitute form providing equivalent coverage) and shall cover liability arising 
from premises, operations, products-completed operations, personal and 
advertising injury, and liability assumed under an insured contract [(including the 
tort liability of another assumed in a business contract)]. 

v. CWSD, its officers, employees and immune contractors shall be included as an 
insured under the CGL, using ISO additional insured endorsement CG 20 10 or 
CG 20 26, or a substitute providing equivalent coverage, including coverage 
under the commercial umbrella, if any. 

vi. This insurance shall apply as primary insurance with respect to any other 
insurance or self-insurance programs afforded to CWSD There shall be no 
endorsement or modification of the CGL to make it excess over other available 



CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-5 

3 of 7 
 
Non-Profit Agreement #2021-5 SNJ – Family Watershed Nights 

insurance; alternatively, if the CGL states that it is excess or pro rata, the policy 
shall be endorsed to be primary with respect to the additional insured. 

vii. There shall be no endorsement or modification of the CGL limiting the scope of 
coverage for liability assumed under a contract. 

viii. SNJ waives all rights against CWSD and its agents, officers, directors, and 
employees for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by 
the commercial general liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance 
maintained pursuant to this Contract. Insurer shall endorse CGL policy as 
required to waive subrogation against CWSD with respect to any loss paid under 
the policy.  

b. Business Automobile Liability Insurance:   

i. SNJ shall maintain automobile liability and, if necessary, commercial 
umbrella liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each 
accident for bodily injury and property damage. 

ii. Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of owned, hired, and non-
owned autos (as applicable).  Coverage as required above shall be written 
on ISO form CA 00 01, CA 00 05, CA 00 25, or a substitute form providing 
equivalent liability coverage. 

iii. SNJ waives all rights against CWSD and its agents, officers, directors, and 
employees for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are 
covered by the automobile liability or other liability insurance obtained by 
SNJ pursuant this Contract.  

c. Workers Compensation Insurance  

iv. SNJ will secure and maintain Workers Compensation during the period of the 
contract.  

4. NOTICE:  For invoicing and notice purposes, the address of each party is as follows: 

  Sierra Nevada Journeys  CWSD 
  Attn:  Joan Grover   Attn:  Edwin James 
  Associate Director of Grants  General Manager 
  190 E. Liberty St.   777 E. William St., Ste. 110A 
  Reno, NV  89501   Carson City, NV 89701 
  (775)  355-1688    (775) 887-7456 

5. MISCELLANEOUS: 

a. This Contract shall be by and between the parties hereto and shall not be assignable or 
transferable. 

b. Any dispute regarding this Contract shall be decided according to the laws of the State 
of Nevada. The Parties consent to the jurisdiction of, and agree that disputes will be 
resolved by, the courts of the First Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada in 
Carson City. If any part of this Contract is declared to be unlawful, any remaining 
obligations shall be deemed terminated. 

c. This Contract may only be amended by consent of both parties. Any amendments must 
be written and executed with the same formality as this Contract. 

d. This Contract constitutes the entire understanding between the parties and there are 
no representations, conditions, warranties, or collateral agreements (expressed or 



CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-5 

4 of 7 
 
Non-Profit Agreement #2021-5 SNJ – Family Watershed Nights 

implied), statutory or otherwise, with respect to the subject of this Contract. 

e. The Parties are associated with each other only for the purposes and to the extent set 
forth in this contract. Each Party is a public agency separate and distinct from the other 
Party. Nothing contained in this contract may be deemed or construed to create a 
partnership or joint venture, to create relationships of an employer-employee or 
principal- agent, to convey ownership of any asset, or to otherwise create any liability 
for one Party whatsoever with respect to the indebtedness, liabilities, and obligations of 
the other Party. 

f. The Parties agree to keep and maintain, under general accepted accounting principles, 
full, true and complete records, agreements, books, and documents pertaining to this 
contract, and at the request of the other Party agree to present, at any reasonable time, 
such records, agreements, books, and documents for inspection, examination, review, 
audit, and copying at any office where such records, agreements, books, and 
documents are maintained. 

g. Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents, including this contract, may be 
open to public inspection and copying. The Parties will have the duty to disclose unless 
particular information or documents are made confidential by law or a common law 
balancing of interest. To the extent that information or documents are made 
confidential, the Parties shall keep such information or documents confidential. 

h. This contract does not contemplate any transfer of property or ownership interest 
between the Parties and the Parties will each maintain ownership of their own facilities. 

i. Except as otherwise provided for by law or this contract, the rights and remedies of the 
Parties shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies 
provided by law or equity. 

j. Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular breach of this contract 
or its material or nonmaterial terms by either Party shall not operate as a waiver by 
such Party of any of its rights or remedies as to any other breach. 

k. Neither Party shall be deemed to be in violation of this contract if it is prevented from 
performing any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public 
transportation, civil or military authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires, 
explosions, or acts of God, including, without limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or 
storms. In such an event the intervening cause must not be through the fault of the 
Party asserting such an excuse, and the excused Party is obligated to promptly 
perform in accordance with the terms of the contract after the intervening cause 
ceases. 

l. Any dispute regarding this Contract shall be decided according to the laws of the 
State of Nevada. The Parties consent to the jurisdiction of, and agree that disputes 
will be resolved by, the courts of the First Judicial District Court of the State of 
Nevada in Carson City. If any part of this contact is declared to be unlawful, any 
remaining obligations shall be deemed terminated.  

m. Each provision of this Agreement shall be considered severable and if for any reason 
any provision or provisions herein are determined to be invalid, unenforceable, or 
illegal under any existing or future law, such invalidity, unenforceability or illegality 
shall not impair the operation of or affect those portions of this Agreement that are 
valid, enforceable and legal. 

 



CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-5 

5 of 7 
 
Non-Profit Agreement #2021-5 SNJ – Family Watershed Nights 

6. PROPER AUTHORITY: 

a. This Contract becomes effective when ratified by appropriate official action of the 
governing body of each party; however, the SNJ can submit expenses that have been 
incurred from July 1, 2021, forward. 

b. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this Contract on 
behalf of each party has full power and authority to enter into this Contract and that the 
parties are authorized by law to engage in cooperative action set forth herein. 

c. This Contract shall be entered into with duplicate originals, realizing that each entity, by 
necessity, must approve and execute the subject document at different dates, times, and 
places. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Contract on the day and year first 
written above.   

 

DATED: _____________________   DATED: ______________________ 

       CARSON WATER 
SIERRA NEVADA JOURNEYS    SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 
 
____________________________   ________________________________ 
Eaton Dunkelberger, CEO    Robert S. Giomi, Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST:      ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________   __________________________________ 
Gail Aldrich, Secretary     Catrina Schambra, Secretary to the Board 



CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-5 

6 of 7 
 
Non-Profit Agreement #2021-5 SNJ – Family Watershed Nights 

Exhibit A 

Project Description 
 
Funding from CWSD will serve over 500 children and their parents in communities within the Carson 
River Watershed with four community-building and educational events called Family Watershed Nights 
(FWN).  FWNs invites K-8 students, their parents, and siblings to attend a fun, family-friendly evening, 
which provides watershed education at the family level and reinforces STEM concepts in the classroom.  
Through hands-on activities, participants will gain a sense of ownership and stewardship for the health 
of their community watershed. 

 



CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-5 

7 of 7 
 
Non-Profit Agreement #2021-5 SNJ – Family Watershed Nights 

Exhibit B 

 

Project Summary Form  

Project name  

Type of Project   

Map ID# Per Stewardship Plan Maps if previously mapped 

Date Started  

Date Completed    

Location Details/Address  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

HUC  

Contact Person   

Primary Objective (What will the project achieve? Was the objective achieved?) 

Area restored/stabilized 
Add linear feet of project/acreage/an applicable measurable unit/material used (rock, 
plants, etc.) 

Estimated Load Reduction Only if applicable 

Total Project Cost $ 

Project Partners List all partners 

 

 

 

Project Photos:  

 

Before construction:     After construction: 

 
Title: Example Photos (replace with specific project)  

Tracking Updates and Milestones  

Date Activity  

Add data and expand table/insert 
rows as required 

Add data and expand table/insert rows as required 

  



AGENDA ITEM #15



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board Members 
 
FROM: Edwin James  
 
DATE: June 16, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item #15 – For Possible Action:  Approval of Non-Profit Agreement 

#2021-6 River Wranglers – Carson River Workdays & School/Student 
Interconnectedness Program in an amount not to exceed $36,000 

 
DISCUSSION:  Attached is Non-Profit Agreement #2021-6 with River Wranglers.  Funding 
for this project was approved in the 2021-22 budget.  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the agreement as submitted.  
 
 



CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-6 

1 of 7 
Non-Profit Agreement #2021-6 RW- Carson River Workdays 

 

 

Agreement 
Addressing Funding from Carson Water Subconservancy  

to River Wranglers for 
Carson River Workdays & School/Student Interconnectedness Program 

  
 This Agreement dated this 16th day of June 2021, is entered into by and between RIVER 
WRANGLERS, a non-profit association (hereinafter "RW") and the CARSON WATER 
SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada (hereinafter "CWSD").   

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, RW is a 501(C)(3) non-profit organization; and 

 WHEREAS, RW has organized a program for Carson River Workdays, which is further described 
in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference; and 

 WHEREAS, CWSD is a water subconservancy district created and organized under the 
provisions of Chapter 541 of NRS; and 

 WHEREAS, this Contract is entered into under the provisions of NRS 277.180 and must be 
ratified by appropriate official action of the governing body of each party as a condition precedent to its 
entry into force; and 

 WHEREAS, CWSD and RW each possess common objectives and responsibilities regarding the 
Carson River; and  

 WHEREAS, RW has requested funding to perform work during fiscal year 2021-22 on the Carson 
River Workday Projects and the Scholl/Student Interconnectedness Program; and 

 WHEREAS, CWSD has agreed to set aside $36,000.00 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021, 
and to grant RW said amount to assist with the projects set forth in Exhibit "A;" 

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants herein 
contained, it is mutually agreed by and between the parties as follows:  

1. CONTRACT TERM:  

CWSD hereby grants to RW $36,000 to assist with Carson River Workdays Program and the 
School/Student Interconnectedness Program: 

a As identified and described in Exhibit "A." 

b RW will submit requests for funding periodically.  The request for funding shall be 
accompanied by a description of what the funds will be used for and shall reference this 
Contract.  

c CWSD commits to pay the approved amount of the request to RW within four (4) weeks 
of said request. 

d RW will submit Project Summary Reports (see Exhibit “B”), including before and after 
project pictures, project goals, etc., prior to final invoice payment or ten percent of grant 
funding will be withheld until reports are submitted.  

e CWSD shall have no responsibility for costs exceeding $36,000.   

f This Contract shall terminate June 30, 2022, at which time RW shall have one (1) month 
thereafter to submit its final invoice for payment related to work performed under this 



CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-6 

2 of 7 
Non-Profit Agreement #2021-6 RW- Carson River Workdays 

 

Contract. 

g If circumstances arise that require a time extension to complete the project, the CWSD 
Board grants the General Manager authority to do so in a written notice to RW. 

h Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, any obligation of CWSD 
hereunder is conditioned upon CWSD's funding resources.  If for whatever reason the 
CWSD's funding resources are reduced or eliminated, CWSD reserves the right to 
terminate this Agreement immediately in writing.  CWSD will reimburse RW for all costs 
that occurred under this Agreement up to the date the Agreement is terminated. 

2. LIMITED LIABILITY AND INDEMIFICATION: 

a. Each party shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend (not excluding the others right to 
participate) the other party from and against all liability, claims, actions, damages, losses, 
and expenses, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, arising 
out of any alleged negligent or willful acts or omissions of the indemnifying party, its 
officers, employees and agents.  Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, 
abridge, or otherwise reduce any other right or obligation of indemnity which would 
otherwise exist as to any party or person described in this paragraph. 

b. The indemnification obligation under this paragraph is conditioned upon the receipt of 
written notice of claim by the indemnified party to the indemnifying party within thirty (30) 
days. The hold harmless and indemnification provision shall not apply to attorneys’ fees 
and costs for the indemnified party’s chosen right to participate with legal counsel. 

c. The parties acknowledge or agree that the contract was written and agreed by both 
parties. 

d. Prior to the institution of any litigation the parties agree to mediate. 

e. Prior to commencing the activities that constitute the Project, RW shall deliver to CWSD a 
certificate issued by its insurance carrier naming CWSD as an additional insured and 
stating that the policy will not be modified or cancelled without 30 days’ notice to CWSD. 

3. RW shall provide CWSD insurance as follows:   

a. General Liability Insurance:  Prior to commencement and for the duration of activities that 
constitute the Project that is the subject of this Contract, RW shall maintain commercial 
general liability (CGL) as follows:  

i. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - General Aggregate. 

ii. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - Products & Completed Operations 
Aggregate. 

iii. One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) - Each Occurrence. 

iv. CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 04 13 (or a 
substitute form providing equivalent coverage) and shall cover liability arising 
from premises, operations, products-completed operations, personal and 
advertising injury, and liability assumed under an insured contract [(including the 
tort liability of another assumed in a business contract)]. 

v. CWSD, its officers, employees and immune contractors shall be included as an 
insured under the CGL, using ISO additional insured endorsement CG 20 10 or 
CG 20 26, or a substitute providing equivalent coverage, including coverage 
under the commercial umbrella, if any. 

vi. This insurance shall apply as primary insurance with respect to any other 
insurance or self-insurance programs afforded to CWSD There shall be no 
endorsement or modification of the CGL to make it excess over other available 



CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-6 

3 of 7 
Non-Profit Agreement #2021-6 RW- Carson River Workdays 

 

insurance; alternatively, if the CGL states that it is excess or pro rata, the policy 
shall be endorsed to be primary with respect to the additional insured. 

vii. There shall be no endorsement or modification of the CGL limiting the scope of 
coverage for liability assumed under a contract. 

viii. RW waives all rights against CWSD and its agents, officers, directors, and 
employees for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by 
the commercial general liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance 
maintained pursuant to this Contract. Insurer shall endorse CGL policy as 
required to waive subrogation against CWSD with respect to any loss paid under 
the policy.  

b. Business Automobile Liability Insurance:   

i. RW shall maintain automobile liability and, if necessary, commercial umbrella 
liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each accident for 
bodily injury and property damage. 

ii. Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of owned, hired, and non-
owned autos (as applicable).  Coverage as required above shall be written 
on ISO form CA 00 01, CA 00 05, CA 00 25, or a substitute form providing 
equivalent liability coverage. 

iii. RW waives all rights against CWSD and its agents, officers, directors, and 
employees for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are 
covered by the automobile liability or other liability insurance obtained by RW 
pursuant this Contract.  

c. Workers Compensation Insurance  

iv. RW will secure and maintain Workers Compensation during the period of the 
contract.  

4. NOTICE:  For invoicing and notice purposes, the address of each party is as follows: 

   RW     CWSD 
   Attn:  Darcy Phillips   Attn:  Edwin James 
 Executive Director   General Manager 
   P.O. Box 1612   777 E. William St., #110 
   Dayton, NV  89403   Carson City, NV 89701 
   (775) 856-9268   (775) 887-7450 
 
5. MISCELLANEOUS: 

a. This Contract shall be by and between the parties hereto and shall not be assignable or 
transferable. 

b. Any dispute regarding this Contract shall be decided according to the laws of the State 
of Nevada. The Parties consent to the jurisdiction of, and agree that disputes will be 
resolved by, the courts of the First Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada in 
Carson City. If any part of this Contract is declared to be unlawful, any remaining 
obligations shall be deemed terminated. 

c. This Contract may only be amended by consent of both parties. Any amendments must 
be written and executed with the same formality as this Contract. 

d. This Contract constitutes the entire understanding between the parties and there are 
no representations, conditions, warranties, or collateral agreements (expressed or 



CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-6 

4 of 7 
Non-Profit Agreement #2021-6 RW- Carson River Workdays 

 

implied), statutory or otherwise, with respect to the subject of this Contract. 

e. The Parties are associated with each other only for the purposes and to the extent set 
forth in this contract. Each Party is a public agency separate and distinct from the other 
Party. Nothing contained in this contract may be deemed or construed to create a 
partnership or joint venture, to create relationships of an employer-employee or 
principal- agent, to convey ownership of any asset, or to otherwise create any liability 
for one Party whatsoever with respect to the indebtedness, liabilities, and obligations of 
the other Party. 

f. The Parties agree to keep and maintain, under general accepted accounting principles, 
full, true and complete records, agreements, books, and documents pertaining to this 
contract, and at the request of the other Party agree to present, at any reasonable time, 
such records, agreements, books, and documents for inspection, examination, review, 
audit, and copying at any office where such records, agreements, books, and 
documents are maintained. 

g. Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents, including this contract, may be 
open to public inspection and copying. The Parties will have the duty to disclose unless 
particular information or documents are made confidential by law or a common law 
balancing of interest. To the extent that information or documents are made 
confidential, the Parties shall keep such information or documents confidential. 

h. This contract does not contemplate any transfer of property or ownership interest 
between the Parties and the Parties will each maintain ownership of their own facilities. 

i. Except as otherwise provided for by law or this contract, the rights and remedies of the 
Parties shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies 
provided by law or equity. 

j. Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular breach of this contract 
or its material or nonmaterial terms by either Party shall not operate as a waiver by 
such Party of any of its rights or remedies as to any other breach. 

k. Neither Party shall be deemed to be in violation of this contract if it is prevented from 
performing any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public 
transportation, civil or military authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires, 
explosions, or acts of God, including, without limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or 
storms. In such an event the intervening cause must not be through the fault of the 
Party asserting such an excuse, and the excused Party is obligated to promptly 
perform in accordance with the terms of the contract after the intervening cause 
ceases. 

l. Any dispute regarding this Contract shall be decided according to the laws of the 
State of Nevada. The Parties consent to the jurisdiction of, and agree that disputes 
will be resolved by, the courts of the First Judicial District Court of the State of 
Nevada in Carson City. If any part of this contact is declared to be unlawful, any 
remaining obligations shall be deemed terminated.  

m. Each provision of this Agreement shall be considered severable and if for any reason 
any provision or provisions herein are determined to be invalid, unenforceable, or 
illegal under any existing or future law, such invalidity, unenforceability or illegality 
shall not impair the operation of or affect those portions of this Agreement that are 
valid, enforceable and legal. 

 



CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-6 

5 of 7 
Non-Profit Agreement #2021-6 RW- Carson River Workdays 

 

6. PROPER AUTHORITY: 

a. This Contract becomes effective when ratified by appropriate official action of the 
governing body of each party; however, the RW can submit expenses that have been 
incurred from July 1, 2021, forward. 

b. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this Contract on 
behalf of each party has full power and authority to enter into this Contract and that the 
parties are authorized by law to engage in cooperative action set forth herein. 

c. This Contract shall be entered into with duplicate originals, realizing that each entity, by 
necessity, must approve and execute the subject document at different dates, times, and 
places. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Contract on the day and year first 
written above.   

 

DATED: ________________________  DATED: ________________________ 

 

      CARSON WATER 

RIVER WRANGLERS    SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 

Eric Johnson, Chairperson   Robert S. Giomi, Chairman 

 

ATTEST:     ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 

Tina Carlsen, Secretary    Catrina Schambra, Secretary to the Board  



CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-6 

6 of 7 
Non-Profit Agreement #2021-6 RW- Carson River Workdays 

 

Exhibit A 

Project Description 
 
River Wranglers (RW) will continue Conserve Carson River Workdays Projects in the Carson River 
Watershed. As part of the grant goals, RW will allocate approximately $6,000 per county. The 
$6,000 will be used to help fund the Conserve Carson River Workdays Projects. The Conserve 
Carson River Workdays provides students hands-on experience doing projects on the river.  
 
This year RW will also create an interconnected group of students throughout the Carson River 
watershed in tandem with Conserve Carson River Workdays projects. This would be an exploratory 
process through which we would meet with watershed teachers, recruit involvement, and figure out the 
virtual method and timing for an ongoing, regular “meet” between students from different areas of the 
watershed. The issues that need to be sorted out include:  
• What age group/standards would fit this project best? 
• What virtual platform works best for this and is the most secure across multiple districts? 
• What format works – partially live with pre-recorded educational videos? 
• Teachers being at different parts of their curriculum at different times of the year – how to solve 

this? 
• Should this be done as STEM night (more voluntary) events or as part of classroom curriculum? 

Is classroom curriculum even possible given differences in districts? 
• What program goals beyond simply connecting kids within the watershed? 

• Non-point source pollution 

• Flooding 

• Watershed awareness – geographic, downstream/upstream, 
different land uses 

• What can kids do to help? 
 

RW has moved to a virtual platform during Covid-19 restrictions and will incorporate this virtual 
content into the regular program once returned to in-person field trips. This programming is 
interactive and engaging. Additionally, RW gives each participating student a backpack filled with 
corresponding activities and supplies. These backpacks have become the new t-shirts. It is a way to give 
the students some hands-on activities and help them to feel they did not miss out as much given they 
could not have a field trip.  RW plans to continue small, more family-oriented river workdays on the 
weekends, and introduce informal education into these workdays with discussions about why they are 
doing what they are doing, the importance of the health of the watershed, and other relevant topics.   

 



CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-6 

7 of 7 
Non-Profit Agreement #2021-6 RW- Carson River Workdays 

 

Exhibit B 

 

Project Summary Form  

Project name  

Type of Project   

Map ID# Per Stewardship Plan Maps if previously mapped 

Date Started  

Date Completed    

Location Details/Address  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

HUC  

Contact Person   

Primary Objective (What will the project achieve? Was the objective achieved?) 

Area restored/stabilized 
Add linear feet of project/acreage/an applicable measurable unit/material used (rock, 
plants, etc.) 

Estimated Load Reduction Only if applicable 

Total Project Cost $ 

Project Partners List all partners 

 

 

 

Project Photos:  

 

Before construction:     After construction: 

 
Title: Example Photos (replace with specific project)  

Tracking Updates and Milestones  

Date Activity  

Add data and expand table/insert 
rows as required 

Add data and expand table/insert rows as required 

  



AGENDA ITEM #16



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board Members 
 
FROM: Edwin James  
 
DATE: June 16, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item #16 – For Possible Action:  Approval of Non-Profit Agreement 

#2021-7 Alpine Watershed Group – Carson River Upper Watershed 
Programs in an amount not to exceed $25,000 

 
DISCUSSION:  Attached is Non-Profit Agreement #2021-7 with Alpine Watershed Group.  
Funding for this project was approved in the 2021-22 budget.  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the agreement as submitted.  
 
 



CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-7 

1 of 7 
 
Non-Profit Agreement #2021-7 AWG -Carson River Upper Watershed Programs 

 

Agreement 
 

Addressing Funding from Carson Water Subconservancy  
to Alpine Watershed Group 

to Assist with Carson River Upper Watershed Programs 
  
 This Agreement dated this16th day of June 2021, is entered into by and between ALPINE 
WATERSHED GROUP, a non-profit association (hereinafter "AWG") and the CARSON WATER 
SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada (hereinafter "CWSD").   

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, AWG is a 501(C)(3) non-profit organization; and 

 WHEREAS, AWG has organized a program for Carson River Upper Watershed Programs, which 
is further described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference; and 

 WHEREAS, CWSD is a water subconservancy district created and organized under the 
provisions of Chapter 541 of NRS; and 

 WHEREAS, this Contract is entered into under the provisions of NRS 277.180 and must be 
ratified by appropriate official action of the governing body of each party as a condition precedent to its 
entry into force; and 

 WHEREAS, CWSD and AWG each possess common objectives and responsibilities regarding 
the Carson River; and  

 WHEREAS, AWG has requested funding to perform work during fiscal year 2021-22 on the 
Carson River Upper Watershed Programs; and 

 WHEREAS, CWSD has agreed to set aside $25,000 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021, 
and to grant AWG said amount to assist with the projects set forth in Exhibit "A;" and 

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants herein 
contained, it is mutually agreed by and between the parties as follows:  

1. CONTRACT TERM: 

CWSD hereby grants to AWG $25,000 to assist with Carson River Upper Watershed Programs: 

a. As identified and described in Exhibit "A." 

b. AWG will submit requests for funding periodically.  The request for funding shall be accompanied 
by a description of what the funds will be used for and shall reference this Contract.  

c. CWSD commits to pay the approved amount of the request to AWG within four (4) weeks of said 
request. 

d. AWG will submit Project Summary Reports (see Exhibit “B”), including before and after project 
pictures, project goals, etc., prior to final invoice payment or ten percent of grant funding will be 
withheld until reports are submitted.  

e. CWSD shall have no responsibility for costs exceeding $25,000.   

f. This Contract shall terminate June 30, 2022, at which time AWG shall have one (1) month 
thereafter to submit its final invoice for payment related to work performed under this Contract. 



CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-7 

2 of 7 
 
Non-Profit Agreement #2021-7 AWG -Carson River Upper Watershed Programs 

g. If circumstances arise that require a time extension to complete the project, the CWSD Board 
grants the General Manager authority to do so in a written notice to AWG. 

h. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, any obligation of CWSD hereunder is 
conditioned upon CWSD's funding resources.  If for whatever reason the CWSD's funding 
resources are reduced or eliminated, CWSD reserves the right to terminate this Agreement 
immediately in writing.  CWSD will reimburse AWG for all costs that occurred under this 
Agreement up to the date the Agreement is terminated. 

2. LIMITED LIABILITY AND INDEMIFICATION: 

a. Each party shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend (not excluding the others right to 
participate) the other party from and against all liability, claims, actions, damages, losses, 
and expenses, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, arising 
out of any alleged negligent or willful acts or omissions of the indemnifying party, its 
officers, employees and agents.  Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, 
abridge, or otherwise reduce any other right or obligation of indemnity which would 
otherwise exist as to any party or person described in this paragraph. 

b. The indemnification obligation under this paragraph is conditioned upon the receipt of 
written notice of claim by the indemnified party to the indemnifying party within thirty (30) 
days. The hold harmless and indemnification provision shall not apply to attorneys’ fees 
and costs for the indemnified party’s chosen right to participate with legal counsel. 

c. The parties acknowledge or agree that the contract was written and agreed by both 
parties. 

d. Prior to the institution of any litigation the parties agree to mediate. 

e. Prior to commencing the activities that constitute the Project, AWG shall deliver to CWSD 
a certificate issued by its insurance carrier naming CWSD as an additional insured and 
stating that the policy will not be modified or cancelled without 30 days’ notice to CWSD. 

3. AWG shall provide CWSD insurance as follows:   

a. General Liability Insurance:  Prior to commencement and for the duration of activities that 
constitute the Project that is the subject of this Contract, AWG shall maintain commercial 
general liability (CGL) as follows:  

i. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - General Aggregate. 

ii. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - Products & Completed Operations 
Aggregate. 

iii. One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) - Each Occurrence. 

iv. CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 04 13 (or a 
substitute form providing equivalent coverage) and shall cover liability arising 
from premises, operations, products-completed operations, personal and 
advertising injury, and liability assumed under an insured contract [(including the 
tort liability of another assumed in a business contract)]. 

v. CWSD, its officers, employees and immune contractors shall be included as an 
insured under the CGL, using ISO additional insured endorsement CG 20 10 or 
CG 20 26, or a substitute providing equivalent coverage, including coverage 
under the commercial umbrella, if any. 

vi. This insurance shall apply as primary insurance with respect to any other 
insurance or self-insurance programs afforded to CWSD There shall be no 
endorsement or modification of the CGL to make it excess over other available 
insurance; alternatively, if the CGL states that it is excess or pro rata, the policy 



CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-7 

3 of 7 
 
Non-Profit Agreement #2021-7 AWG -Carson River Upper Watershed Programs 

shall be endorsed to be primary with respect to the additional insured. 

vii. There shall be no endorsement or modification of the CGL limiting the scope of 
coverage for liability assumed under a contract. 

viii. AWG waives all rights against CWSD and its agents, officers, directors, and 
employees for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by 
the commercial general liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance 
maintained pursuant to this Contract. Insurer shall endorse CGL policy as 
required to waive subrogation against CWSD with respect to any loss paid under 
the policy.  

b. Business Automobile Liability Insurance:   

i. AWG shall maintain automobile liability and, if necessary, commercial 
umbrella liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each 
accident for bodily injury and property damage. 

ii. Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of owned, hired, and non-
owned autos (as applicable).  Coverage as required above shall be written 
on ISO form CA 00 01, CA 00 05, CA 00 25, or a substitute form providing 
equivalent liability coverage. 

iii. AWG waives all rights against CWSD and its agents, officers, directors, and 
employees for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are 
covered by the automobile liability or other liability insurance obtained by 
AWG pursuant this Contract.  

c. Workers Compensation Insurance  

iv. AWG will secure and maintain Workers Compensation during the period of the 
contract.  

4. NOTICE:  For invoicing and notice purposes, the address of each party is as follows: 

   AWG    CWSD 
   Attn.: Kimra McAfee   Attn.: Edwin James 
   Executive Director   General Manager 
   P.O. Box 296   777 E. William St., #110 
   Markleeville, CA 96120  Carson City, NV 89706 
   (530) 694-2327   (775) 887-7456 
 
5. MISCELLANEOUS: 

a. This Contract shall be by and between the parties hereto and shall not be assignable or 
transferable. 

b. Any dispute regarding this Contract shall be decided according to the laws of the State 
of Nevada. The Parties consent to the jurisdiction of, and agree that disputes will be 
resolved by, the courts of the First Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada in 
Carson City. If any part of this Contract is declared to be unlawful, any remaining 
obligations shall be deemed terminated. 

c. This Contract may only be amended by consent of both parties. Any amendments must 
be written and executed with the same formality as this Contract. 

d. This Contract constitutes the entire understanding between the parties and there are 
no representations, conditions, warranties, or collateral agreements (expressed or 
implied), statutory or otherwise, with respect to the subject of this Contract. 



CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-7 

4 of 7 
 
Non-Profit Agreement #2021-7 AWG -Carson River Upper Watershed Programs 

e. The Parties are associated with each other only for the purposes and to the extent set 
forth in this contract. Each Party is a public agency separate and distinct from the other 
Party. Nothing contained in this contract may be deemed or construed to create a 
partnership or joint venture, to create relationships of an employer-employee or 
principal- agent, to convey ownership of any asset, or to otherwise create any liability 
for one Party whatsoever with respect to the indebtedness, liabilities, and obligations of 
the other Party. 

f. The Parties agree to keep and maintain, under general accepted accounting principles, 
full, true and complete records, agreements, books, and documents pertaining to this 
contract, and at the request of the other Party agree to present, at any reasonable time, 
such records, agreements, books, and documents for inspection, examination, review, 
audit, and copying at any office where such records, agreements, books, and 
documents are maintained. 

g. Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents, including this contract, may be 
open to public inspection and copying. The Parties will have the duty to disclose unless 
particular information or documents are made confidential by law or a common law 
balancing of interest. To the extent that information or documents are made 
confidential, the Parties shall keep such information or documents confidential. 

h. This contract does not contemplate any transfer of property or ownership interest 
between the Parties and the Parties will each maintain ownership of their own facilities. 

i. Except as otherwise provided for by law or this contract, the rights and remedies of the 
Parties shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies 
provided by law or equity. 

j. Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular breach of this contract 
or its material or nonmaterial terms by either Party shall not operate as a waiver by 
such Party of any of its rights or remedies as to any other breach. 

k. Neither Party shall be deemed to be in violation of this contract if it is prevented from 
performing any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public 
transportation, civil or military authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires, 
explosions, or acts of God, including, without limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or 
storms. In such an event the intervening cause must not be through the fault of the 
Party asserting such an excuse, and the excused Party is obligated to promptly 
perform in accordance with the terms of the contract after the intervening cause 
ceases. 

l. Any dispute regarding this Contract shall be decided according to the laws of the 
State of Nevada. The Parties consent to the jurisdiction of, and agree that disputes 
will be resolved by, the courts of the First Judicial District Court of the State of 
Nevada in Carson City. If any part of this contact is declared to be unlawful, any 
remaining obligations shall be deemed terminated.  

m. Each provision of this Agreement shall be considered severable and if for any reason 
any provision or provisions herein are determined to be invalid, unenforceable, or 
illegal under any existing or future law, such invalidity, unenforceability or illegality 
shall not impair the operation of or affect those portions of this Agreement that are 
valid, enforceable and legal. 

 

6. PROPER AUTHORITY: 



CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-7 

5 of 7 
 
Non-Profit Agreement #2021-7 AWG -Carson River Upper Watershed Programs 

a. This Contract becomes effective when ratified by appropriate official action of the 
governing body of each party; however, the AWG can submit expenses that have been 
incurred from July 1, 2021, forward. 

b. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this Contract on 
behalf of each party has full power and authority to enter into this Contract and that the 
parties are authorized by law to engage in cooperative action set forth herein. 

c. This Contract shall be entered into with duplicate originals, realizing that each entity, by 
necessity, must approve and execute the subject document at different dates, times, and 
places. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Contract on the day and year first 
written above.   

 

DATED: ________________________  DATED: ________________________ 

 

      CARSON WATER 
ALPINE WATERSHED GROUP   SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 
 
_______________________________  _______________________________ 
Kimra McAfee, Executive Director  Robert S. Giomi, Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST:     ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________  _______________________________ 
Zach Wood, Secretary    Catrina Schambra, Secretary to the Board  



CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-7 

6 of 7 
 
Non-Profit Agreement #2021-7 AWG -Carson River Upper Watershed Programs 

Exhibit A 

Project Description 
 

 

Alpine Watershed Group (AWG) seeks funding for the fiscal year 2021-2022 from the Carson Water 

Subconservancy District for the coordination of its Upper Carson River watershed programs. AWG’s 

mission is to preserve and enhance the natural system functions of Alpine County’s watersheds for 

future generations. For 20 years, AWG has organized volunteers and inspired widespread participation 

to address water quality monitoring and restoration needs in Alpine County. To further the stewardship 

of our county’s natural resources, our organization has developed diverse partnerships around 

watershed issues. As the nonprofit environmental organization for the Carson River headwaters (see 

attached map), our positive impacts extend downstream, where the Carson River flows into Northern 

Nevada. Through this project, AWG staff will: (1) involve local citizens in watershed stewardship; (2) plan 

and implement watershed monitoring and restoration activities; (3) recruit diverse stakeholders and 

strengthen community partnerships; and (4) support local watershed education and community 

outreach. 



CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-7 

7 of 7 
 
Non-Profit Agreement #2021-7 AWG -Carson River Upper Watershed Programs 

Exhibit B 

 

Project Summary Form  

Project name  

Type of Project   

Map ID# Per Stewardship Plan Maps if previously mapped 

Date Started  

Date Completed    

Location Details/Address  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

HUC  

Contact Person   

Primary Objective (What will the project achieve? Was the objective achieved?) 

Area restored/stabilized 
Add linear feet of project/acreage/an applicable measurable unit/material used (rock, 
plants, etc.) 

Estimated Load Reduction Only if applicable 

Total Project Cost $ 

Project Partners List all partners 

 

 

 

Project Photos:  

 

Before construction:     After construction: 

 
Title: Example Photos (replace with specific project)  

 

Tracking Updates and Milestones  

Date Activity  

Add data and expand table/insert 
rows as required 

Add data and expand table/insert rows as required 

  



AGENDA ITEM #17 



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board Members 
 
FROM: Edwin James  
 
DATE: June 16, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item #17 – For Possible Action:  Approval of Interlocal Contract 

#2021-8 Churchill County – Lahontan Valley Water Level Measurement 
Program in the amount not to exceed $44,000 over 3 years 

 
DISCUSSION:  Attached is Interlocal Contract #2021-8 with Churchill County.  Funding for 
this project was approved in the 2021-22 budget.  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the contract as submitted.  
 
 



Page 1 of 7 

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-8  

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-8: 
CHURCHILL COUNTY Lahontan Valley Water Level Measurement Program 

INTERLOCAL CONTRACT 
 

Addressing Funding from Carson Water Subconservancy District to Churchill 
County for Lahontan Valley Water Level Measurement Program 

 
THIS CONTRACT dated this 16th day of June 2021 is entered into by and between Churchill County, a 

political subdivision of the State of Nevada (hereinafter "CHURCHILL COUNTY") and the CARSON WATER 
SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada (hereinafter "CWSD"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, CHURCHILL COUNTY is a governmental subdivision of the State of Nevada and therefore 
a public agency under NRS 277.100; and 

WHEREAS, CWSD is a water subconservancy district created and organized under the provisions of 
Chapter 541 of NRS; and 

WHEREAS, this Contract is entered into under the provisions of NRS 277.180 and must be ratified by 
appropriate official action of the governing body of each party as a condition precedent to its entry into force; and 

WHEREAS, CWSD and CHURCHILL COUNTY each possess common objectives and responsibilities 
regarding the Carson River; and 

WHEREAS, CHURCHILL COUNTY has requested $44,000.00 over a three-year period: $14,500.00 for 
the fiscal year 2021-22, $14,500.00 for the fiscal year 2022-23, and $15,000.00 for the fiscal year 2023-24 to assist 
with the Lahontan Valley Water Level Measurement Program; and 

WHEREAS CWSD has agreed to set aside a total amount of $44,000.00 over a three-year period: 
approximately $14,500.00 for the fiscal year 2021-22, $14,500.00 for the fiscal year 2022-23, and $15,000.00 for 
the fiscal year 2023-24 to assist with the Lahontan Valley Water Level Measurement Program. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants herein contained, it is 
mutually agreed by and between the parties as follows: 

1. CONTRACT SCOPE AND TERM: 

a. CWSD hereby grants to CHURCHILL COUNTY $44,000.00 over a three-year period: 
app0roximately $14,500.00 for the fiscal year 2021-22, $14,500.00 for the fiscal year 2022-23, 
and $15,000.00 for the fiscal year 2023-24 to assist with the Lahontan Valley Water Level 
Measurement Program which is further identified and described in Exhibit "A." 

b. CHURCHILL COUNTY will submit requests for funding periodically. The request for funding shall 
be accompanied by a description of what the funds will be used for and shall reference this 
Contract. 

c. CWSD commits to pay the approved amount of the request to CHURCHILL COUNTY within four 
(4) weeks of said request. 

d. CHURCHILL COUNTY will submit Project Summary Reports (See Exhibit “B”), including before 
and after project pictures, project goals, etc., prior to final invoice payment or ten percent of grant 
funding will be withheld until reports are submitted. 

e. CWSD shall have no responsibility for costs exceeding $44,000.00. 

f. This Contract shall terminate June 30, 2024, at which time CHURCHILL COUNTY shall have 
one (1) month thereafter to submit its final invoice for payment related to work performed under 
this Contract. 

g. If circumstances arise that require a time extension to complete the project, the CWSD Board 
grants the General Manager authority to do so in a written notice to CHURCHILL COUNTY. 



Page 2 of 7 

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-8  

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-8: 
CHURCHILL COUNTY Lahontan Valley Water Level Measurement Program 

h. Notwithstanding any other provision of this contract, any obligation of CWSD hereunder is 
conditioned upon CWSD's funding resources. If for whatever reason the CWSD's funding 
resources are reduced or eliminated, CWSD reserves the right to terminate this contract 
immediately in writing. CWSD will reimburse CHURCHILL COUNTY for all costs that occurred 
under this contract up to the date the contract is terminated. 

 

 

2. LIMITED LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION: 

a. Each party shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend, not excluding the others right to 
participate, the other party from and against all liability, claims, actions, damages, losses, and 
expenses, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, arising out of any 
alleged negligent or willful acts or omissions of the indemnifying party, its officers, employees, 
and agents. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or otherwise reduce any 
other right or obligation of indemnity which would otherwise exist as to any party or person 
described in this paragraph. 

b. The indemnification obligation under this paragraph is conditioned upon the receipt of written 
notice of claim by the indemnified party to the indemnifying party within thirty (30) days. The hold 
harmless and indemnification provision shall not apply to attorneys’ fees and costs for the 
indemnified party’s chosen right to participate with legal counsel. 

c. Prior to commencing the activities that constitute the CHURCHILL COUNTY Lahontan Valley 
Water Level Measurement Program, CHURCHILL COUNTY shall deliver to CWSD a certificate 
issued by its insurance carrier naming CWSD as an additional insured and stating that the policy 
will not be modified or cancelled without 30 days’ notice to CWSD. 

d. If CHURCHILL COUNTY hires a contractor to perform any portion of this project, the contractor 
shall add CWSD as an additional insured.  The contractor must carry the Liability Insurance 
requirements are described in Section 3. 

e. The parties acknowledge or agree that the contract was written and agreed by both parties. 

f. Prior to the institution of any litigation the parties agree to mediate. 

g. The Parties do not waive and intend to assert available NRS Chapter 41 liability limitations in all 
cases. The contract liability of the Parties under this contract does not include punitive damages. 
Liquidated damages shall not apply unless otherwise expressly provided for elsewhere in this 
contract. The Parties agree that, in the event one Party is awarded attorney’s fees against the 
other for any reason, the rate applied to recoverable attorney’s fees shall not exceed the rate of 
$125 per hour. The liability of CWSD shall be limited to the $44,000 appropriated by CWSD for 
purposes of this contract. 

3. CHURCHILL COUNTY shall provide CWSD insurance as follows: 

a. General Liability Insurance: Prior to commencement and for the duration of activities that 
constitute the CHURCHILL COUNTY Lahontan Valley Water Level Measurement Program that 
is the subject of this Contract, CHURCHILL COUNTY shall maintain commercial general liability 
(CGL) as follows: 

i. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - General Aggregate. 

ii. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - Products & Completed Operations Aggregate. 

iii. One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) - Each Occurrence. 

iv. CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 04 13 (or a substitute 
form providing equivalent coverage) and shall cover liability arising from premises, 



Page 3 of 7 

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-8  

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-8: 
CHURCHILL COUNTY Lahontan Valley Water Level Measurement Program 

operations, products- completed operations, personal and advertising injury, and liability 
assumed under an insured contract [(including the tort liability of another assumed in a 
business contract)]. 

v. CWSD, its officers, employees and immune contractors shall be included as an insured 
under the CGL, using ISO additional insured endorsement CG 20 10 or CG 20 26, or a 
substitute providing equivalent coverage, including coverage under the commercial 
umbrella, if any. 

vi. This insurance shall apply as primary insurance with respect to any other insurance or 
self-insurance programs afforded to CWSD. There shall be no endorsement or 
modification of the CGL to make it excess over other available insurance; alternatively, if 
the CGL states that it is excess or pro rata, the policy shall be endorsed to be primary 
with respect to the additional insured. 

vii. There shall be no endorsement or modification of the CGL limiting the scope of 
coverage for liability assumed under a contract. 

viii. CHURCHILL COUNTY waives all rights against CWSD and its agents, officers, 
directors, and employees for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are 
covered by the commercial general liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance 
maintained pursuant to this Contract. Insurer shall endorse CGL policy as required to 
waive subrogation against CWSD with respect to any loss paid under the policy. 

b. Business Automobile Liability Insurance: 

i. CHURCHILL COUNTY shall maintain automobile liability and, if necessary, commercial 
umbrella liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each accident for 
bodily injury and property damage. 

ii. Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of owned, hired, and non-owned autos (as 
applicable). Coverage as required above shall be written on ISO form CA 00 01, CA 00 
05, CA 00 25, or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage. 

iii. CHURCHILL COUNTY waives all rights against CWSD and its agents, officers, 
directors, and employees for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are 
covered by the automobile liability or other liability insurance obtained by CHURCHILL 
COUNTY pursuant this Contract. 

4. NOTICE:  

a. For invoicing and notice purposes, the address of each party is as follows: 

CHURCHILL COUNTY CWSD 
Attn.: Gregg Berggren Attn.: Edwin James 
Trails Coordinator General Manager 
3303 Butti Way, Building 9 777 E. William St., #110 
CHURCHILL COUNTY, NV 89701 CHURCHILL COUNTY, NV 89701 
(775)283-7219 (775) 887-7456 

5. MISCELLANEOUS: 

a. This Contract shall be by and between the parties hereto and shall not be assignable or 
transferable. 

b. Any dispute regarding this Contract shall be decided according to the laws of the State of 
Nevada. The Parties consent to the jurisdiction of, and agree that disputes will be resolved by, 
the courts of the First Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada in CHURCHILL COUNTY. If 
any part of this Contract is declared to be unlawful, any remaining obligations shall be deemed 
terminated. 



Page 4 of 7 

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-8  

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-8: 
CHURCHILL COUNTY Lahontan Valley Water Level Measurement Program 

c. This Contract may only be amended by consent of both parties. Any amendments must be 
written and executed with the same formality as this Contract. 

d. This Contract constitutes the entire understanding between the parties and there are no 
representations, conditions, warranties, or collateral agreements (expressed or implied), 
statutory or otherwise, with respect to the subject of this Contract. 

e. The Parties are associated with each other only for the purposes and to the extent set forth in 
this contract. Each Party is a public agency separate and distinct from the other Party. Nothing 
contained in this contract may be deemed or construed to create a partnership or joint venture, 
to create relationships of an employer-employee or principal- agent, to convey ownership of 
any asset, or to otherwise create any liability for one Party whatsoever with respect to the 
indebtedness, liabilities, and obligations of the other Party. 

 

f. The Parties agree to keep and maintain, under general accepted accounting principles, full, 
true and complete records, agreements, books, and documents pertaining to this contract, and 
at the request of the other Party agree to present, at any reasonable time, such records, 
agreements, books, and documents for inspection, examination, review, audit, and copying at 
any office where such records, agreements, books, and documents are maintained. 

g. Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents, including this contract, may be open to 
public inspection and copying. The Parties will have the duty to disclose unless particular 
information or documents are made confidential by law or a common law balancing of interest. 
To the extent that information or documents are made confidential, the Parties shall keep such 
information or documents confidential. 

h. This contract does not contemplate any transfer of property or ownership interest between the 
Parties and the Parties will each maintain ownership of their own facilities. 

i. Except as otherwise provided for by law or this contract, the rights and remedies of the Parties 
shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or 
equity. 

j. Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular breach of this contract or its 
material or nonmaterial terms by either Party shall not operate as a waiver by such Party of any 
of its rights or remedies as to any other breach. 

k. Neither Party shall be deemed to be in violation of this contract if it is prevented from 
performing any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public transportation, 
pandemic, civil or military authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires, explosions, or acts of 
God, including, without limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or storms. In such an event the 
intervening cause must not be through the fault of the Party asserting such an excuse, and the 
excused Party is obligated to promptly perform in accordance with the terms of the contract 
after the intervening cause ceases. 

l. Any dispute regarding this Contract shall be decided according to the laws of the State of 
Nevada. The Parties consent to the jurisdiction of, and agree that disputes will be resolved 
by, the courts of the First Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada in CHURCHILL 
COUNTY. If any part of this contact is declared to be unlawful, any remaining obligations shall 
be deemed terminated.  
 

m. Each provision of this Agreement shall be considered severable and if for any reason any 
provision or provisions herein are determined to be invalid, unenforceable, or illegal under any 
existing or future law, such invalidity, unenforceability, or illegality shall not impair the 
operation of or affect those portions of this Agreement that are valid, enforceable, and legal. 



Page 5 of 7 

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-8  

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-8: 
CHURCHILL COUNTY Lahontan Valley Water Level Measurement Program 

 
 

6. PROPER AUTHORITY: 

a. This Contract becomes effective when ratified by appropriate official action of the governing 
body of each party; however, CHURCHILL COUNTY can submit expenses that have been 
incurred from July 1, 2021, forward. 

b. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this Contract on behalf of 
each party has full power and authority to enter into this Contract and that the parties are 
authorized by law to engage in cooperative action set forth herein. 

c. This Contract shall be entered into with duplicate originals, realizing that each entity, by 
necessity, must approve and execute the subject document at different dates, times, and places. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Contract on the day and year first written 
above. 

 

 

DATED:   DATED:    

 

 

CARSON WATER 
CHURCHILL COUNTY SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

 

 

 

             
Robert Crowell, Mayor Robert S. Giomi, Chairman 

 

 

ATTEST: ATTEST: 

 

 

 

             
Aubrey Rowlatt, Clerk-Recorder    Catrina Schambra, Secretary to the Board 



Page 6 of 7 

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-8  

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-8: 
CHURCHILL COUNTY Lahontan Valley Water Level Measurement Program 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
The existing project entailed a detailed review of the USGS reports and water level measurements to 
identify potential gaps in aerial and vertical (shallow vs. intermediate aquifers) extent to determine where 
additional water level measurement would be useful.  This resulted in approximately 28 wells completed 
predominately in the Intermediate aquifer being selected for water level measurement.  These wells have 
been measured monthly since ~January 2012 and preliminary results were presented to the Churchill 
County BOCC and CWSD on 4/23/14 and updated again in a presentation to the Churchill County BOCC 
on 2/1/18.  In May 2014 approximately 7 more Intermediate aquifer wells were added to the program to fill 
in identified gaps in the NW portion of the valley.  All wells have been surveyed with the County’s survey 
grade GPS unit to obtain accurate coordinates and well-head elevations such that vertical and horizontal 
gradients can be determined.   The County’s water level monitoring program which focuses primarily on the 
Intermediate aquifer compliments the USGS program which focuses mainly on the Shallow and Basalt 
Aquifers. 

The project has regional benefits since most of the surface supply for the Newlands project and hence 
recharge come from the Carson River which are augmented by the Truckee River.  The Churchill County 
Water Resource Plan Update has identified the local intermediate aquifer as the near term quasi-municipal 
supply and the length of time it can sustain development is contingent upon recharge from the surface 
water system and downward gradients from the Shallow aquifer to the Intermediate aquifer in the western 
portion of the basin.  Due to the relative slow movement of groundwater, impacts to the Intermediate 
aquifer due to reductions in recharge from the Shallow aquifer were thought to take years or decades to 
fully manifest, however recovery of water levels in 2016 – 2017 seem to contradict this.  Ongoing 
monitoring is critical to further understand the rate of decline in water levels during drought years and 
subsequent recovery during wetter years.  Furthermore, the State Engineer relies on water level data when 
making many water resource and water rights decisions. 
 
The ongoing funding request is for an additional three-year term through FY23/24; however, it is 
anticipated for this program to be successful as a long-term management tool, it be continued as an 
ongoing effort.



Page 7 of 7 

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-8  

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-8: 
CHURCHILL COUNTY Lahontan Valley Water Level Measurement Program 

Exhibit B 
 

Project Summary Form 

Project name  

Type of Project  

Map ID# Per Stewardship Plan Maps if previously mapped 

Date Started  

Date Completed  

Location Details/Address  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

HUC  

Contact Person  

Primary Objective (What will the project achieve? Was the objective achieved?) 

Area restored/stabilized 
Add linear feet of project/acreage/an applicable measurable unit/material used (rock, 
plants, etc.) 

Estimated Load Reduction Only if applicable 

Total Project Cost $ 

Project Partners List all partners 

 

 

Tracking Updates and Milestones 

Date Activity 

Add data and expand table/insert 

rows as required 
Add data and expand table/insert rows as required 

  

 
Project Photos: 

 

Before construction: After construction: 
 

Title: Example Photos (replace with specific project) 

  



AGENDA ITEM #18 



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board Members 
 
FROM: Edwin James  
 
DATE: June 16, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item #18 – For Possible Action:  Approval of Interlocal Contract 

#2021-9 Truckee-Carson Irrigation District – Carson River Diversion Dam 
Repairs Project in an amount not to exceed $50,000 

 
DISCUSSION:  Attached is Interlocal Contract #2021-9 with Truckee-Carson Irrigation 
District.  Funding for this project was approved in the 2021-22 budget.  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the contract as submitted.  
 
 



Page 1 of 7 

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-9  

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-9: 
TCID – Carson River Diversion Dam Repairs Project 

INTERLOCAL CONTRACT 
 

Addressing Funding from Carson Water Subconservancy District to 
TRUCKEE-CARSON IRRIGATION DISTRICT for  
Carson River Diversion Dam Repairs Project 

 
 THIS CONTRACT dated this 16th day of June 2021, is entered into by and between TRUCKEE-

CARSON IRRIGATION DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada (hereinafter "TCID") and the 

CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada (hereinafter 

"CWSD").  

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, TCID is a governmental subdivision of the State of Nevada and therefore a public agency 
under NRS 277.100; and 

WHEREAS, CWSD is a water subconservancy district created and organized under the provisions of 
Chapter 541 of NRS; and 

WHEREAS, this Contract is entered into under the provisions of NRS 277.180 and must be ratified by 
appropriate official action of the governing body of each party as a condition precedent to its entry into force; and 

WHEREAS, CWSD and TCID each possess common objectives and responsibilities regarding the 
Carson River; and 

WHEREAS, TCID has requested $50,000 funding for fiscal year 2021-22 for the TCID Carson River 
Diversion Dam Repairs Project and 

WHEREAS, CWSD has agreed to set aside $50,000 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021, and to 
grant TCID said amount to assist with the TCID Carson River Diversion Dam Repairs Project. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants herein contained, it is 
mutually agreed by and between the parties as follows: 

1. CONTRACT SCOPE AND TERM: 

a. CWSD hereby grants to TCID $50,000 to assist with TCID Carson River Diversion Dam Repairs 
Project; which is further identified and described in Exhibit "A." 

b. TCID will submit requests for funding periodically. The request for funding shall be accompanied 
by a description of what the funds will be used for and shall reference this Contract. 

c. CWSD commits to pay the approved amount of the request to TCID within four (4) weeks of said 
request. 

d. TCID will submit Project Summary Reports (See Exhibit “B”), including before and after project 
pictures, project goals, etc., prior to final invoice payment or ten percent of grant funding will be 
withheld until reports are submitted. 

e. CWSD shall have no responsibility for costs exceeding $50,000. 

f. This Contract shall terminate June 30, 2022, at which time TCID shall have one (1) month 
thereafter to submit its final invoice for payment related to work performed under this Contract. 

g. If circumstances arise that require a time extension to complete the project, the CWSD Board 
grants the General Manager authority to do so in a written notice to TCID. 

h. Notwithstanding any other provision of this contract, any obligation of CWSD hereunder is 
conditioned upon CWSD's funding resources. If for whatever reason the CWSD's funding 



Page 2 of 7 

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-9  

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-9: 
TCID – Carson River Diversion Dam Repairs Project 

resources are reduced or eliminated, CWSD reserves the right to terminate this contract 
immediately in writing. CWSD will reimburse TCID for all costs that occurred under this contract 
up to the date the contract is terminated. 

2. LIMITED LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION: 

a. Each party shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend, not excluding the others right to 
participate, the other party from and against all liability, claims, actions, damages, losses, and 
expenses, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, arising out of any 
alleged negligent or willful acts or omissions of the indemnifying party, its officers, employees, 
and agents. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or otherwise reduce any 
other right or obligation of indemnity which would otherwise exist as to any party or person 
described in this paragraph. 

b. The indemnification obligation under this paragraph is conditioned upon the receipt of written 
notice of claim by the indemnified party to the indemnifying party within thirty (30) days. The hold 
harmless and indemnification provision shall not apply to attorneys’ fees and costs for the 
indemnified party’s chosen right to participate with legal counsel. 

c. Prior to commencing the activities that constitute the TCID Carson River Diversion Dam Repairs 
Project, TCID shall deliver to CWSD a certificate issued by its insurance carrier naming CWSD 
as an additional insured and stating that the policy will not be modified or cancelled without 30 
days’ notice to CWSD. 

d. If TCID hires a contractor to perform any portion of this project, the contractor shall add CWSD 
as an additional insured.  The contractor must carry the Liability Insurance requirements are 
described in Section 3. 

e. The parties acknowledge or agree that the contract was written and agreed by both parties. 

f. Prior to the institution of any litigation the parties agree to mediate. 

g. The Parties do not waive and intend to assert available NRS Chapter 41 liability limitations in all 
cases. The contract liability of the Parties under this contract does not include punitive damages. 
Liquidated damages shall not apply unless otherwise expressly provided for elsewhere in this 
contract. The Parties agree that, in the event one Party is awarded attorney’s fees against the 
other for any reason, the rate applied to recoverable attorney’s fees shall not exceed the rate of 
$125 per hour. The liability of CWSD shall be limited to the $50,000 appropriated by CWSD for 
purposes of this contract. 

3. TCID shall provide CWSD insurance as follows: 

a. General Liability Insurance: Prior to commencement and for the duration of activities that 
constitute the TCID Carson River Diversion Dam Repairs Project that is the subject of this 
Contract, TCID shall maintain commercial general liability (CGL) as follows: 

i. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - General Aggregate. 

ii. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - Products & Completed Operations Aggregate. 

iii. One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) - Each Occurrence. 

iv. CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 04 13 (or a substitute 
form providing equivalent coverage) and shall cover liability arising from premises, 
operations, products- completed operations, personal and advertising injury, and liability 
assumed under an insured contract [(including the tort liability of another assumed in a 
business contract)]. 

v. CWSD, its officers, employees and immune contractors shall be included as an insured 
under the CGL, using ISO additional insured endorsement CG 20 10 or CG 20 26, or a 



Page 3 of 7 

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-9  

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-9: 
TCID – Carson River Diversion Dam Repairs Project 

substitute providing equivalent coverage, including coverage under the commercial 
umbrella, if any. 

vi. This insurance shall apply as primary insurance with respect to any other insurance or 
self-insurance programs afforded to CWSD. There shall be no endorsement or 
modification of the CGL to make it excess over other available insurance; alternatively, if 
the CGL states that it is excess or pro rata, the policy shall be endorsed to be primary 
with respect to the additional insured. 

vii. There shall be no endorsement or modification of the CGL limiting the scope of 
coverage for liability assumed under a contract. 

viii. TCID waives all rights against CWSD and its agents, officers, directors, and employees 
for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the commercial 
general liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance maintained pursuant to this 
Contract. Insurer shall endorse CGL policy as required to waive subrogation against 
CWSD with respect to any loss paid under the policy. 

b. Business Automobile Liability Insurance: 

i. TCID shall maintain automobile liability and, if necessary, commercial umbrella liability 
insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each accident for bodily injury and 
property damage. 

ii. Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of owned, hired, and non-owned autos (as 
applicable). Coverage as required above shall be written on ISO form CA 00 01, CA 00 
05, CA 00 25, or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage. 

iii. TCID waives all rights against CWSD and its agents, officers, directors, and employees 
for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the automobile 
liability or other liability insurance obtained by TCID pursuant this Contract. 

4. NOTICE:  

For invoicing and notice purposes, the address of each party is as follows: 

TCID    CWSD 
Attn:  Rusty Jardine  Attn: Edwin James 
General Manager   General Manager 
P.O. Box 1356   777 E. William St., #110 
Fallon, NV 89407-1356  Carson City, NV 89701 
(775)423-2141   (775) 887-7456 
 

5. MISCELLANEOUS: 

a. This Contract shall be by and between the parties hereto and shall not be assignable or 
transferable. 

b. Any dispute regarding this Contract shall be decided according to the laws of the State of 
Nevada. The Parties consent to the jurisdiction of, and agree that disputes will be resolved by, 
the courts of the First Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada in Carson City. If any part of 
this Contract is declared to be unlawful, any remaining obligations shall be deemed terminated. 

c. This Contract may only be amended by consent of both parties. Any amendments must be 
written and executed with the same formality as this Contract. 

d. This Contract constitutes the entire understanding between the parties and there are no 
representations, conditions, warranties, or collateral agreements (expressed or implied), 
statutory or otherwise, with respect to the subject of this Contract. 



Page 4 of 7 

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-9  

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-9: 
TCID – Carson River Diversion Dam Repairs Project 

e. The Parties are associated with each other only for the purposes and to the extent set forth in 
this contract. Each Party is a public agency separate and distinct from the other Party. Nothing 
contained in this contract may be deemed or construed to create a partnership or joint venture, 
to create relationships of an employer-employee or principal- agent, to convey ownership of 
any asset, or to otherwise create any liability for one Party whatsoever with respect to the 
indebtedness, liabilities, and obligations of the other Party. 

f. The Parties agree to keep and maintain, under general accepted accounting principles, full, 
true and complete records, agreements, books, and documents pertaining to this contract, and 
at the request of the other Party agree to present, at any reasonable time, such records, 
agreements, books, and documents for inspection, examination, review, audit, and copying at 
any office where such records, agreements, books, and documents are maintained. 

g. Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents, including this contract, may be open to 
public inspection and copying. The Parties will have the duty to disclose, unless particular 
information or documents are made confidential by law or a common law balancing of interest. 
To the extent that information or documents are made confidential, the Parties shall keep such 
information or documents confidential. 

h. This contract does not contemplate any transfer of property or ownership interest between the 
Parties and the Parties will each maintain ownership of their own facilities. 

i. Except as otherwise provided for by law or this contract, the rights and remedies of the Parties 
shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or 
equity. 

j. Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular breach of this contract or its 
material or nonmaterial terms by either Party shall not operate as a waiver by such Party of any 
of its rights or remedies as to any other breach. 

k. Neither Party shall be deemed to be in violation of this contract if it is prevented from 
performing any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public transportation, civil or 
military authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires, explosions, or acts of God, including, 
without limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or storms. In such an event the intervening cause 
must not be through the fault of the Party asserting such an excuse, and the excused Party is 
obligated to promptly perform in accordance with the terms of the contract after the intervening 
cause ceases. 

l. Any dispute regarding this Contract shall be decided according to the laws of the State of 
Nevada. The Parties consent to the jurisdiction of, and agree that disputes will be resolved by, 
the courts of the First Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada in Carson City. If any part of 
this contact is declared to be unlawful, any remaining obligations shall be deemed terminated.  

m. Each provision of this Agreement shall be considered severable and if for any reason any 
provision or provisions herein are determined to be invalid, unenforceable, or illegal under any 
existing or future law, such invalidity, unenforceability, or illegality shall not impair the operation 
of or affect those portions of this Agreement that are valid, enforceable, and legal. 

6. PROPER AUTHORITY: 

a. This Contract becomes effective when ratified by appropriate official action of the governing 
body of each party; however, TCID can submit expenses that have been incurred from  
July 1, 2021, forward. 

b. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this Contract on behalf of 
each party has full power and authority to enter into this Contract and that the parties are 
authorized by law to engage in cooperative action set forth herein. 

  



Page 5 of 7 

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-9  

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-9: 
TCID – Carson River Diversion Dam Repairs Project 

c. This Contract shall be entered into with duplicate originals, realizing that each entity, by 
necessity, must approve and execute the subject document at different dates, times, and places. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Contract on the day and year first written 
above. 

 

 

DATED: ________________________  DATED: ________________________ 
 
TRUCKEE-CARSON     CARSON WATER 
IRRIGATION DISTRICT    SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 
 
 
_______________________________  _______________________________ 
Eric Olsen, President     Robert S. Giomi, Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST:      ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________________  _______________________________ 
Bob Oakden, Secretary    Catrina Schambra, Secretary to the Board  

 
  



Page 6 of 7 

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-9  

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-9: 
TCID – Carson River Diversion Dam Repairs Project 

EXHIBIT A 
 
This project consists of the application of a product, Aqualastic to the concrete surfaces of the Carson River 
Diversion Dam (Dam). The Dam is located approximately five (5) miles downstream of Lahontan Dam in Churchill 
County, Nevada. Aqualastic™ is a polyurea elastomeric coating that when applied to concrete serves to seal 
cracks preventing damage to facilities, check undesired flows, and prevent water loss. TCID has used this 
product extensively in the Newlands Project and with particular success on the Truckee Canal.  
 

The Dam is a United States Bureau of Reclamation facility constructed in 1906. It serves to divert water released 
from Lahontan Dam, flowing in the Carson River channel, in one of three (3) ways: 1. Through a series of Repairs 
directing continuing flow in the Carson River Channel; 2. Through the headworks of the V-Line Canal; and, 3. 
Through the headworks of the TLine Canal. The Dam is 24 feet long with a 225-foot long, 31-foot-high concrete 
control section. In flood operations conducted in 2017, we diverted approximately 3,320 cfs of flow from 
Lahontan Dam. At the Carson Diversion Dam 1,700 cfs. Flowed into the V-Line Canal, 1,200 cfs. in the Carson 
River Channel (the Carson River Repairs are capable of 1,950 cfs), and approximately 200 cfs in the T-Line Canal. 

Pivotal to continuing water management of water on the Carson River, TCID’s ability to make diversions through 
the Diversion Dam. In this application TCID seeks to apply Aqualastic ™ to cracks in the concrete of the dam thus 
encapsulating degraded sections of concrete. As stated previously, the Diversion Dam is very old; and, the useful 
life of its concrete was exceeded long ago. While the hope is to replace the Diversion Dam in the future, its use 
in both regular operations and in flood operation remains absolutely essential. Application of Aqualastic™ will 
serve to prolong the life of the Diversion Dam -protecting it against potential failure particularly amidst flood 
operations. Protecting the dam from failure serves, ultimately, to protect all property owners on the Carson 
River below it from flood waters that could not be controlled.



Page 7 of 7 

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-9  

CWSD INTERLOCAL CONTRACT #2021-9: 
TCID – Carson River Diversion Dam Repairs Project 

Exhibit B 
 

Project Summary Form 

Project name  

Type of Project  

Map ID# Per Stewardship Plan Maps if previously mapped 

Date Started  

Date Completed  

Location Details/Address  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

HUC  

Contact Person  

Primary Objective (What will the project achieve? Was the objective achieved?) 

Area restored/stabilized 
Add linear feet of project/acreage/an applicable measurable unit/material used (rock, 
plants, etc.) 

Estimated Load Reduction Only if applicable 

Total Project Cost $ 

Project Partners List all partners 

 

 

Tracking Updates and Milestones 

Date Activity 

Add data and expand table/insert 
rows as required 

Add data and expand table/insert rows as required 

  

 
Project Photos: 

 

Before construction: After construction: 
 

Title: Example Photos (replace with specific project) 

  



AGENDA ITEM #19



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board Members 
 
FROM: Edwin James  
 
DATE: June 16, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item #19 – For Discussion Only:  Presentation on the USACE 

Alluvial Fan study in Douglas County 

 
DISCUSSION:  CWSD staff will show a USACE presentation on an Alluvial Fan Study the 
USACE conducted in Douglas County.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file.  
 
 



AGENDA ITEM #20



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board Members 
 
FROM: Edwin James  
 
DATE: June 16, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item #20 – For Discussion Only:  Presentation on the Douglas 

County Stormwater Program by Courtney Walker, Douglas County 
Stormwater Manager 

 
DISCUSSION:  Courtney Walker, Douglas County Stormwater Manager will give a 
presentation on the Stormwater Program in Douglas County.  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file.  
 
 



AGENDA ITEM #21



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board Members 
 
FROM: Edwin James  
 
DATE: June 16, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item #21 – For Discussion Only:  Wrap up on the 2021 Legislative 

Session 

 
DISCUSSION:  Staff will give a final report of the 2021 Legislation Session. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file. 
 



AGENDA ITEM #22



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
FROM: EDWIN D. JAMES  
 
DATE: June 16, 2021 
 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item #22 – For Possible Action:  Discussion to send support letter 
regarding the Douglas County Lands Bill 

 

DISCUSSION:  Staff will give an overview of Douglas County Lands Bill, show a short 
interview with Jacques Etchegohen on the history of the bill, and request the CWSD send 
a letter of support to our federal representatives.  Attached is some history on the Douglas 
County Lands Bill and a draft letter of support.  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve support letter as presented.  
 
 



DOUGLAS COUNTY LAND CONSERVATION HISTORY 
 

Douglas County Master Plan--Conservation 
 
In 1960, Douglas County adopted the first Master Plan in Nevada, written by local Raymond Smith.  Mr. 
Smith would go on to write the first Master Plans for Washoe County and the Tahoe Regional Planning 
Agency.   
 
After 5 years of special committees and numerous attempts, Douglas County adopted a new 1996 
Master Plan called the Douglas County Open Space and Agricultural Lands Preservation Implementation 
Plan (Douglas Plan).  The heart of the plan requires a balance between development and preservation of 
ranch land and other open spaces.  It also includes a “transfer of development rights” (TDR) component, 
generally requiring developers to acquire 1 TDR for each new home built in a development “receiving 
area.”  A past county commissioner called the commissioners communists just before adoption, and 
prominent rancher, David Hussman, said, “Thanks for Nothing” at the conclusion of the meeting.  (Mr. 
Hussman later became the first rancher in Douglas to sell his TDRs to a developer for $2,000,000.)  The 
1996 Douglas Master Plan was voted the best Master Plan in the USA by the National Planning 
Association and accepted the award at the National Planning Conference in Tampa. 
 
Nevada State Director of the BLM, Bob Abbey, approached the county about considering a land 
exchange that would take about 15,000 acres of BLM land in Lincoln County, release it into private 
ownership, and equalize the exchange by acquiring conservation easements on ranches in Douglas 
County.  This “Lincoln-Douglas Exchange” would reduce federal land ownership in a county that was 
96% federal and preserve ranch land in Douglas County as privately, preserved, and paying property 
taxes. Senator Bryan passed legislation moving the Forest Service – BLM jurisdictional boundary from 
Highway 395 to Foothill Road, as the Forest Service at that time refused to acquire conservation 
easements. 
 
Congress passed the Southern Nevada Public Lands Management Act (SNPLMA) and Federal Land 
Transfer Facilitation Act (FLTFA), both allowing federal land to be sold, and giving agencies the authority 
to acquire land or interest in land.  Land exchanges were ceased in Nevada.  Douglas County worked 
with the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) to amend the BLM Carson City District Resource 
Management Plan (RMP), which resulted in the auction of 300 acres of land in northern Douglas--
$40,000,000 was generated.  The RMP plan amendment said that 90% of the proceeds were to be used 
in Douglas County with conservation easement acquisitions as the priority.  However, an Interior 
Solicitor wrote that the proceeds could only be used in Congressionally designated areas, and almost all 
of the funds were spent outside of Nevada.   
 
In 2000, The Nature Conservancy, American Land Conservancy, and The Trust for Public Land nominated 
13 ranches for conservation easement acquisitions using SNPLMA authority.   
The Nevada Sierra Club sent a letter opposing these acquisitions, suggesting instead that the agencies 
buy fee title to the land.  The first SNPLMA committee recommended none of the conservation 
easements be funded.  The Douglas Commission Chairman met with Senator Reid and obtained a letter 



in full support of the easement concept.  The SNPLMA Executive Committee, with Bob Abbey as chair, 
approved all 13 conservation easement acquisitions.   
 
In a county with the highest median home value in Nevada thus far in Douglas the “transfer of 
development rights” program has protected over 4,000 acres of ranchland.  The Master Plan has 
protected nearly 2,000 acres by allowing ranchers to “cluster” developments adjacent to their property.  
The BLM/USFS/SNPLMA have protected over 4,200 acres, with 14,500 acres being acquired from Bently 
Enterprises in the Pine Nut Mountains.  The Timkin-Sturgis Family donated a conservation easement on 
700 acres.  Finally, the President of Disney Studios, Alan Horn, has donated conservation easements on 
nearly 6,000 acres in Douglas.   
 
Ranch families who have participated, or desire to, in the various ranch land conservation programs: 
Ascuaga, Byington, Ranch No. 1, James Canyon Ranch, Bently, Scossa, Hussman, Park, Van Sickle Station, 
Dreyer, Clear Creek Tahoe, Hickey, White, Henningsen, Stodieck Bros, Neddenriep, Hone, Hellwinkel, 
Heise, and Gansberg.   
 
Since 1996, the master plan has been updated every 5 years. The most recent plan was adopted in 
2016. In addition to agriculture and conservation, the plan has goals related to economic development, 
growth management, housing, public safety, tribal outreach, and transportation.  
 
Douglas County Economic Development and Conservation Act 
 
The objectives of the ten-year effort to pass the Douglas County Economic Development and 
Conservation Act (Douglas bill) are to carry out the Douglas Master Plan, which was updated in 2016. 
The Plan’s objectives are to preserve essential Carson river floodplains, open space, natural resources, 
rural character, and cultural heritage through the acquisition of conservation easements on Douglas 
County’s historic agricultural operations. Acquiring conservation easements on these active ranches will 
add to the already existing scenic corridor and connect the approximately 18,500 acres that have 
already been protected using various county, state, and federal mechanisms. 
 
 In 2009, the County began a public lands bill planning process which took 2 years. The Douglas bill is the 
culmination of those efforts and aligns with the goals of the Master Plan. The Douglas bill facilitates the 
transfer of federal lands that have important cultural meaning to the Washoe Tribe, utilization of certain 
federal lands in the eastern County for flood attenuation and enhances recreational opportunities 
throughout the County.  

For the first time, the Douglas Bill would give Douglas County authority to approve or reject BLM land 
disposal in Douglas County. Should Douglas County concur with the BLM’s disposal of certain parcels, 
the bill would dictate how the disposal proceeds are used, ensuring that the majority of the proceeds 
are used for the protection of environmentally sensitive lands and acquisition of conservation 
easements in alignment with the Douglas Master Plan.  

Patterned after SNPLMA, the Douglas bill does not mandate the sale of 10,000 acres. Under current law, 
the BLM has the authority to dispose of lands that the BLM has previously identified for disposal under 



its Resource Management Plan. In the existing Carson City Consolidated Resource Management Plan, 
the BLM has currently identified several thousand acres for disposal in Douglas County. Under the 
existing law, Douglas County has no ability to manage or control the BLM disposal process. The Douglas 
Bill, however, would mandate a Joint Selection process, whereby Douglas County must concur with the 
BLM for the BLM to dispose of any parcels.  

The Douglas Bill proposes designating the Burbank Canyons as Wilderness. The Burbank Canyons have 
been designated a Wilderness Study for nearly 35 years. Land bills commonly designate wilderness as a 
measure to balance the transfer or disposal of federal lands out of public ownership. Given that the 
Burbank Canyons have already been managed as wilderness for nearly 35 years and close no travel 
routes, Douglas County feels this is a reasonable compromise, particularly considering the legislation 
ensures that historic uses are protect 



 

 
777 East William Street, Suite 110A, Carson City, NV  89701-4058          775-887-7450    FAX 775-887-7457     www.cwsd.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

June 16, 2021 
 
The Honorable Catherine Cortez Masto 
204 Russell Senate Office Building 
Washington, DC 20510 
 
The Honorable Jacky Rosen 
144 Russell Senate Office Building 
Washington, DC 20510 
 
The Honorable Mark Amodei 
322 Cannon House Office Building 
Washington, DC 20515 
 
Dear Senator Cortez Masto, Senator Rosen, and Congressman Amodei,  
 
On behalf of the Carson Water Subconservancy District, I want to request your support for the reintroduction of the 
Douglas County Conservation Act during this session of Congress.  As you know, the Douglas County Conservation Act 
has been a priority for many years, dating back to 2009. 
 
This legislation will help Douglas County accomplish important flood management objectives through the conservation 
of the floodplain along the Carson River and by obtaining federal parcels for the construction of flood control detention 
basins. The legislation also provides opportunities for economic development in Douglas County while preserving the 
Burbank Canyons Wilderness Study Area. Importantly, the bill will convey cultural lands of importance to the Washoe 
Tribe of Nevada and California.  
 
We thank you in advance for your continued sponsorship of this critically important legislation to Douglas County.  
Please let me know if there is any further information we may provide. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Robert S. Giomi 
Chairman 
Carson Water Subconservancy District 
 
 
RSG:cat 



AGENDA ITEM #23



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
FROM: EDWIN D. JAMES  
 
DATE: June 16, 2021 
 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item #23 – For Possible Action:  Approve General Manager Review 

 

DISCUSSION:  Attached is the annual review scores for Ed James for FY 20-21. On June 
9, 2021, the Administrative Committee met to discuss the General Manager’s review and 
propose goals for fiscal year 2021-22.  The committee will present their recommendations 
at the board meeting. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the General Manager Review for FY 20-21 as 
presented.  
 
 



Ed James, CWSD General Manager -  Annual Review FY 20/21 Decis
io

ns

Pre
se

nta
tio

ns

Com
m

unica
tio

n

Dele
ga

tio
n

Open &
 R

ece
ptiv

e

Fle
xib

ilit
y w

/G
ro

ups

TOTA
LS

Board Member General Comments FY 2021-22 Goals

Jack Jacobs Knowledge of the complex water issues is extensive 

and valuable.  Continued effort to bring together the 

complex water issues and educate key leaders in all 

jurisdictions has been outstanding and helpful to 

assure fact based decisions. 

Continue development of a water resources plan 

for the Carson Watershed that is understood and 

accepted by all jurisdictional leaders and many of 

the community in general.  This plan should 

provide confidence in the long term availability of 

surface and groundwater supplies along with a 

management plan to assure water 

purveyors/users control use to not exceed 

availability.

3 2 3 3 3 3 17

Stacey Giomi Ed is a valuable resource and recognized expert in the 

water arena.  The work that he and the staff have 

done over the past several years has made CWSD the 

"go to" organization for best practices, water 

management, regional cooperation and more. 

Continue on the path we are going. No new 

specific goals for 21/22. 

3 3 2 3 3 3 17

David Griffith Board Member field is not fillable, but this review is by 

David Griffith.  I would like to see a broader range of 

scores, say 1 to 5 instead of 1 to 3.  There is a big 

difference between Adequate and Commendable, and 

similarly between Needs Improvement and Adequate.  

If there was the opportunity I would have given 

intermediate scores.

In awarding grants the CWSD should establish a 

policy of 1) only consider grants that advance or 

implement the CWSD mission, 2) if additional 

funds turn out to be available they should only go 

to the various funds or be allocated to grantees on 

a "if available" basis when the grant applications 

are all considered.  That way there won't be any 

favoritism as happened this year.

A strategic planning workshop to help the CWSD 

district focus on projects that benefit the 

watershed as a whole. 

2 3 3 2 3 3 16



January Riddle I am new to this board, so I don't have a lot to say 

about what Ed has done. But from the first day I was 

sworn in to the Alpine County BoS, Ed has been 

reaching out to make sure I know the structure and 

purposes of the organization. He even drove to 

Markleeville to give me a binder of information, and 

he met with me personally to touch base about my 

ideas and concerns.

I would like to see some representation from the 

Native American communities and to see an 

increase in member diversity. Right now, CWSD is 

heavily older white male weighted.
3 3 3 3 3 3 18

Pete Olsen I'm new back on the Board.  I've known Ed for years.  

He does a fine job operating CWSD.

Discover where the water loss is going that Ed 

highlighted to me recently in the Carson Valley. 2 3 2 2 3 3 15

Ernie Schank We appreciate the job you have done.  You seem to be 

able to handle the challenges that come in a very 

professional manner ant I have never seen you lose 

your cool which is commendable in this day and age.

3 0 3 0 3 0 9



Mike Workman During this past COVID infected year, under Ed's 

leadership, our dedicated and loyal staff have 

continued to perform their duties related to the 

numerous programs and assignments at a very high 

level. The use of social media, Zoom and traditional  

news outlets have been a huge success in getting 

education programs, general business items out to the 

end user. Ed and his staff have done an outstanding 

job throughout this stressful and unpredictable year.

Ed delegates responsibilities and assignments to the 

appropriate staff, allows staff to exercise their 

judgement in the completion of their projects and 

provides guidance to staff and Board Members as 

needed.

Ed does a great job of communicating with the various 

agencies he works with as well as the Board Members. 

He is open to discussion and takes whatever time is 

needed to work through whatever topic is being 

discussed.

Great job in keeping the operation moving in a 

positive direction this past year!

(1) Continue to work with the USGS, DWR and 

Federal Water Master in an effort to further 

understand and agree upon approaches to 

accurately reporting on ground water levels, water 

usage and demands and hopefully perfecting how 

the data is stored and made available to the 

public. With changing staff at various 

organizations and what seems to be an ever-

shifting focus on appropriate approaches to 

analyzing data, clear and understandable 

reporting seems  to be a moving target. CWSD (Ed) 

has years of data that can help establish accurate 

benchmarks and analysis. (2) Work with the Board 

to  assure that staff's job descriptions and pay 

grades are appropriate and develop a plan to 

adjust as needed. A multi-year approach to pay or 

benefit adjustments may be needed depending on 

impacts to the budget. It is critical in my opinion, 

to assure that CWSD be competitive with other 

agencies similar to ours and with engineering 

firms that deal with water  related programs. I 

would prefer that we be on the upper end of the 

similar industry salary scale to help assure 

3 3 3 3 3 3 18

Cathy Canfield 3 3 3 3 3 3 18

Lisa Schuette Being new to this board, I find Ed to be incredibly 

helpful and knowledgable.  Meetings are well 

organized and Ed is open to different ideas, 

suggestions and perspectives. I appreciate Ed's 

willingness to answer my questions and work so 

diligently on behalf of the watershed.

I'm excited that Storey County is now officially a 

part of the sub-conservancy. A goal that I would 

like to see accomplished is for ALL members of the 

board to base their decisions on what is best way 

to provide adequate water while protecting the 

watershed and the long term health of our lakes 

and rivers. While it's important to be mindful of 

differing points of view, perspectives shared 

should focus on best practices and conservation, 

not political campaigns. 

3 3 3 3 3 3 18

TOTALS: 25 23 25 22 27 24 146



AGENDA ITEM #24



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
FROM: EDWIN D. JAMES  
 
DATE: June 16, 2021 
 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item #24 – For Discussion Only:  Update on 2021 Water Year   

 

DISCUSSION:  Staff will give an update on the water picture for the Carson River 
Watershed.  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file.  
 
 



STAFF REPORTS 



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

 
TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
FROM: EDWIN D. JAMES  
 
DATE: JUNE 16, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item #25 - For Information Only:  Staff Report  

 
DISCUSSION: The following is a list of meetings/activities (mostly virtual) attended by  
Ed James and staff since the last Board meeting on May 19, 2021: 

 

● 5/20/21 – Ed and Brenda gave presentation of Water Connects Us All Campaign 

to Lyon County BOS 

● 5/20/21 – Debbie, Shane and Katie attended FAW meeting 

● 5/20/21 - Ed and Brenda gave presentation of Water Connects Us All Campaign 

to Douglas County BOC 

● 5/20/21 – Katie attended Grant Writing workshop 

● 5/20/21 – Katie attended Zoom meeting w/NEON for campaign update 

● 5/21/21 – Brenda, Shane and Katie held Zoom meeting to strategize Watershed 

Moments filming for WS Campaign 

● 5/22/21-5/23/21 - Katie attended Basic Training with AmeriCorps 

● 5/23/21 – Ed met with Directors Olsen and Schank in Fallon 

● 5/23/21 – Brenda and Katie met attended McKinley Farmers Market Tabling 

Coordination Meeting 

● 5/23/21 – Ed attended meeting with NDOT regarding 395 and 88 projects:  flood 

model discussion 

● 5/24/21 – Ed attended CA Flood Preparedness Meeting with DWR 

● 5/24/21 – Brenda, Katie and Shane attended NEON meeting re: WS Moments 

● 5/24/21 – STAFF MEETING (ALL) 

● 5/26/21 – Ed and Debbie met with Michael Baker re FEMA Contract 

● 5/26/21 – Brenda, Shane and Katie produced Lands Bill Video Interview 

● 5/27/21 – Brenda and Shane conducted Katie’s Walk in the Park Review 

● 5/28/21 – Katie attended Desert Farming initiative Workday 



2 
6/16/2021 CWSD Board Meeting 
Agenda Item #25 - Staff Report 

 

● 6/1/21 – Ed and Shane gave presentation of Water Connects Us All Campaign 

to Alpine County 

● 6/2/21 – Ed and Shane gave presentation of Water Connects Us All Campaign 

to Town of Minden 

● 6/2/21 – Katie attended Zoom Mtg re: McKinley Farmers Market 

● 6/3/21 – Ed attended Ruhenstroth ADMP Concept Design Phase Kickoff 

meeting 

● 6/3/21 – Ed attended Carson City Insurance meeting 

● 6/4/21 - Katie attended Grant Writing workshop 

● 6/8/21 – Ed attended CTWCD Board meeting 

● 6/8/21 – Ed and Shane gave presentation of Water Connects Us All Campaign 

to Gardnerville Water Company  

● 6/9/21 – Ed and Catrina host Regional Water System & Flood Committee 

meeting 

● 6/9/21 – Ed and Catrina host Administrative Committee meeting 

● 6/9/21 – Shane attended AWG Restoration & Monitoring Committee Meeting 

● 6/10/21 – 6/11/21 – Katie participated in AWG river monitoring day 

● 6/10/21 – Katie worked Farmers Market Booth 

● 6/10/21 – Ed and Shane gave presentation of Water Connects Us All Campaign 

to Stagecoach GID 

● 6/14/21 – Ed met with RCI re:  source water protection update 

● 6/14/21 – Ed attended the NV Drought Working Group Meeting 

● 6/15/21 - Ed and Brenda gave presentation of Water Connects Us All Campaign 

to Alpine County BOS 

● 6/15/21 – Ed, Brenda and Shane take field trip to Mexican Dam Portage  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file. 

 

 



 CORRESPONDENCE



Carson River a surprise to many residents 

 

A congregation of ibises takes flight over a field south of Muller Lane on Wednesday afternoon. 
The migratory water birds have flocked to Carson Valley’s flood irrigated fields to feed and 
mate. Photo by Kurt Hildebrand. 

The Record Courier Saturday, May 22, 2021 

By Kurt Hildebrand 

 

Not quite a tenth of the residents living in the Carson River Watershed could name the river in a 
recent survey. 

Carson River Subconservancy Watershed Program Manager Brenda Hunt told Douglas County 
commissioners on Thursday that 62 percent either didn’t know or think they lived in a 
watershed at all, and that 70 percent thought they didn’t affect the watershed, or only had a 
slight impact. 

But she said, once people were informed about the watershed, three-quarters indicated they 
did care once they knew about it. 

The Carson River springs from the Sierra and is fed by the annual snowpack. It travels through 
Alpine, Douglas, Carson, Lyon and Churchill counties before ending in the Carson Sink north of 
Fallon. 

Until the Lahontan Reservoir in Churchill County, there is no significant water storage upstream 
on the Carson, besides the snowpack. 

There are a few small reservoirs, including Mud Lake south of Gardnerville and in the upper 
reaches of Alpine County. 

https://www.recordcourier.com/staff/kurt-hildebrand/
https://www.recordcourier.com/news/2021/may/22/carson-river-surprise-many-residents/
https://www.recordcourier.com/staff/kurt-hildebrand/
https://www.recordcourier.com/news/2021/may/22/carson-river-surprise-many-residents/


“We have very little storage in the watershed, so really we depend on Mother Nature,” said 
Subconservancy General Manager Ed James. “We could have a major flood in January and be in 
a drought in July.” 

While people don’t drink water from the Carson, it is one of the key sources of water in Carson 
Valley’s aquifer.  

“It’s a dynamic system because of the river and agriculture spreading water in the Valley,” 
James said on Thursday.  

James said that water levels below Carson Valley have not altered much, but the only source for 
recharge in the Pine Nut foothills are the mountains themselves. 

“We don’t get much precipitation that goes across the Valley and into the Pine Nuts,” he said. 

Providing major upstream storage on the Carson would be an expensive undertaking, with 
James estimating a dam would cost somewhere in the neighborhood of $200-$400 million. 
Even efforts to create off-stream storage, like a proposal to turn the Bing Pit into a big pond, 
could run to $18 million. 

Even expanding Mud Lake would top $11 million. 

James warned commissioners that those costs are very rough. 

“I wouldn’t bank on anything there,” he said. 

Efforts to change how Nevada regulates its rivers at the Nevada Legislature have either died or 
been significantly altered. 

James said he pointed out that while the rules might apply to the rest of the state, they would 
violate the Alpine Decree, which dictates how the Carson is distributed. He said they wouldn’t 
have worked on the Truckee, Walker or Humboldt rivers, either. 

While the water in the Carson isn’t potable, in good irrigation years ranchers don’t have to 
pump water from the aquifer to water their fields. That reduces the pressure on the aquifer to 
provide drinking water to Carson Valley residents. 

 


	6-16-21 # 1 Agenda
	#6 insert (last minutes)
	6-16-21 #6 BD Mtg Minutes 5-19-2021 (DRAFT)
	#7 insert (TreasRpt)
	6-16-21 #7 Treasurers Report
	#8 insert (Pmt of Bills)
	6-16-21 #8 BILLS PAID Report
	#9 insert
	6-16-21 #9 Cost of Living Adjustment Policy
	#10 insert
	Page 1

	6-16-21 #10 CVCD
	6-16-21 #10A #2021-1 CVCD - Bioengineering
	#11 insert
	Page 1

	6-16-21 #11 CVCD
	6-16-21 #11A  #2021-2 CVCD - West Fork Bank Stabilization
	#12 insert
	Page 1

	6-16-21 #12 DVCD
	6-16-21 #12A  #2021-3 DVCD - River Projects Inventory
	#13 insert
	Page 1

	6-16-21 #13 LCD
	6-16-21 #13A #2021-4 LCD - Lower Carson River Project
	#14 insert
	Page 1

	6-16-21 #14 SNJ
	6-16-21 #14A  #2021-5 SNJ Family Watershed Nights
	#15 insert
	Page 1

	6-16-21 #15 RW
	6-16-21 #15A  #2021-6 RW Carson River Workdays
	#16 insert
	Page 1

	6-16-21 #16 AWG
	6-16-21 #16A  #2021-7 AWG Carson River Upper Watershed Programs
	#17 insert
	6-16-21 #17 Ch Cty
	6-16-21 #17A #2021-8  ChCo Lahontan Vly Wtr Lvl Meas
	#18 insert
	6-16-21 #18 TCID
	6-16-21 #18A  #2021-9 TCID - Carson River Diversion Dam Repairs
	#19 insert
	Page 1

	6-16-21 #19 Alluvial Fan Study Presentation
	#20 insert
	Page 1

	6-16-21 #20 Stormwater Presentation
	#21insert
	Page 1

	6-16-21 #21 Legislative Session
	#22 insert
	Page 1

	6-16-21 #22 Do Cty Land Bill Support Letter
	6-16-21 #22A  Do Cty Land Bill - HISTORY
	6-16-21 #22B Do Cty Land Bill Support Letter
	#23 insert
	Page 1

	6-16-21 #23 GM Review
	6-16-21 #23A GM Annual Review Report FY 20-21
	#24 insert
	Page 1

	6-16-21 #24  Water Year Update
	Staff reports
	6-16-21 #25 Staff Report
	Correspondence insert
	Page 1

	6-16-21 #25A Correspondance -Carson River a surprise to many residents

